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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Directors present their report and financial staternents for the year ended 31 December 2007
Principal activity and review of the business

The principal activities of EDF Energy plc and subsidiaries {together the “Group” or “EDF Energy”) during
the year continued to be the provision and supply of electncity and gas to commercial, residential and
industniat customers, the provision of services relating to energy, including purchasing of fuel for power
generation, the generation of electricity and the operation of public and private distribution networks The
Group will continue with these activities for the foreseeable future

Results and dividends

The profit for the year, before taxation and associates, amounted to £336 9m (2006 £420 8m) and after
taxation and contnbutions from associates to £239 6m (2006 £342 1m) Dividends paid during the year
amounted to £110 Om (2006 £105 Om)

EDF Energy plc and its subsidianes operates through three main divisions or branches These are
Customer and Energy, Networks and Corporate The principal activitties of these branches continue to
be,
¢ Customer and Energy, the provision and supply of electricity and gas to commercial, residential
and industnal customers, the provision of services relating to energy, including purchasing of fuel
for power generation and the generation of electricity

« Networks, the operation of both public distnbution networks, private distribution networks and PFi
contracts

« Corporate, the provision of support services including property, IT and sustainable solutions
The Group will continue with these activities for the foreseeable future

A summary of the key financial results are set out n the table below and are discussed in this section
Further detail of the results of the segments can be found in the segmental reporting note {note 4}

Revenue Operating profit
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Customer and Energy 4,618.1 46399 62.8 541
Networks 1,438.9 1,351 0 480.6 493 5
Other and elminations (297 4) (302 0) 18 46 1
Group 57596 56889 555 2 5937

Customer and Energy

During 2007 EDF Energy stepped up the nationwide promotion of the EDF Energy brand, an increasingly
well-known replacement of the legacy supply brands As of 31 December 2007, EDF Energy had 41
milion customers and 55 million customer accounts It supplied 192 TWh of electncity to 3 5 million
residential accounts, 271,000 SME accounts and 332 TWh of electrnicity to 191,000 major business
accounts It also had 1 6 million gas customer accounts to whom 28 7 TWh of gas were sold in 2007

2007 has seen extreme volatiity in wholesale commodity prices Retail tanffs follow the overali trend In
commodity prices while hmiting short-term volatiity Therefore an efficient hedging strategy that smoothes
market volatility 1s a key competitive factor for all suppliers
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DIRECTQORS' REPORT continued

In this high volatilty period, the cost of Customer and Energy hedging strategy has led to an increase in
operating profit from £54 1m 1n 2006 to £62 8m in 2007

EDF Energy decreased Its sale prices for residential gas customers by 10 2% on 15 June 2007 However
due to market conditions, on 18 January, 2008 EDF Energy raised its prices by 7 9% for electricity and
12 9% for gas

Networks

The networks branch comprises regulated networks and unregulated networks The operating profit
decreased during the year from £493 5m to £522 4m due to provisions made relating to Metronet

Regulated Networks maintain and operate public electricity networks within the South East, East and
London areas The networks are regulated by the Office for Gas and Electrncity Markets ("OFGEM")
Through the Distribution Price Control Mechanism OFGEM sets the tanffs that are allowed to be charged
during the pernod that a licence 1s granted

In 2007, regulated networks were able to increase profits due to allowable tanff increase and unit growth
This Increase was also due to greater efficiency within the branch and a concerted effort to reduce
operating expenses

Regulated networks have to ensure there 1s a sufficient amount of investment in the network to support
the load growth requirement of the customers and mantenance of the network Capital expenditure
relating to the regulated network activity increased from £500 6m to £629 9m durning the year

Other Networks construct, maintain and operate a number of pnvate networks including Heathrow
Terminal five and the Channel Tunnel Rail Link EDF Energy has built up a portfoho of contracts through
PFI/PPP asset infrastructure and electnical distribution networks projects

One of these contracts 1s Metronet, a 30-year Public-Private Partnership (PPP) contract with London
Underground to maintain, renew and upgrade two thirds of London Underground Network’s Infrastructure
through its two Infrastructure companies The operaton of Metronet consortium commenced 1n April
2003

EDF Energy's interests in Metronet are

+ a 20% Iinterest In the Metronet Consortium, which holds two of the three LLondon Underground
Infrastructure PFI concessions, and

+ a 25% nterest in Metronet Allance, which manages the delvery of station modernisations and
refurbishments as well as the mamntenance, remediation and development of civil assets

As Metronet was not able to renegotiate a suffictent share of anticipated cost overruns on the contracts,
the Directors of Metronet placed both Metronet Ral SSL Holdings Lirmited and Metronet Rall BCV
Holdings Limited into admimistration on 18 July 2007

In addition, on 23 July 2007, Trans4m Limited, one of the members of the Metronet Consortium gave
notice to London Underground to withdraw from the contract The termination came nto effect on 30
August 2007 At the request of London Underground and Metronet, EDF Energy entered into a
Secondment Agreement with Metronet with effect from 30 August 2007 for a perniod of 3 months to
second those EDF Energy staff who had been involved in the project to Metronet Negotiations are still
ongoing between the various parties to terminate all contractual links and habilities A provision has been
established against the assets of Metronet to cover future expected losses under the contact as well as
all outstanding recewvables

EDF Energy also runs three Street Lighting PFI projects, Dorset, Ealing and Isington The PFI projects
require the delivery of capital replacement works (in the first 5§ years) and maintenance and renewal over
a 25-year perniod Strategic reviews, following the decision to integrate Regulated Networks and Other
Networks Into a single branch, resulted in the decision to concentrate on core business and sell these
projects Preferred bidders were selected in November 2007 The companies were sold on 29 February
2008

3
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

In the Netwecrks branch, our health and safety performance was overshadowed by the death of three
employees at work In August, an employee working for the Contracting Low Voltage Division fell from a
mobile scaffolding tower that he was dismanting, in September, an employee working on the Low
Voltage Public Network was electrocuted during a Live Jointing operation, in November, a iinesman was
electrocuted while upgrading a pole-mounted transformer on the Public Network In each case, similar
activittes were suspended immediately and only re-authonsed once causes were identfied and
appropriate measures taken to prevent a recurrence The three incidents were investigated thoroughly
and all recommendations are being implemented in full Our health and safety strategy has been
reviewed following these three fatal incidents We need to understand our employees' perceptions and
behaviours better, and to help us do this we have appointed an independent expert to carry out a cultural
survey early in 2008 We will use the results to determine our future strategy and improve performance

Long-term strategy and business objectives

In 2004 the Group launched its goals to achieve five ambitions for the future 2007 was a landmark in this
process with clearly set Key Performance Indicators (“KPI’s) to measure how the Group was performing
The five key ambitions of the Group are

* "We want to care more for our customers and continually improve customer experience”
o Measured through independent monthly surveys giving annual average % of our major
business customers and mass market customers {across distribution, supply and
contracting businesses) who are satisfied with the service they receive

e “We want to be known as a learning business and a great place to work so that our employees
can be proud of their company”
o Measured through an independent annual survey giving % of our employees satisfied
with EDF Energy as an employer

» “We want to meet our shareholders expectations and grow the value of our existing business”
o The measures of this are focused on net income and earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) and are assessed subject to market conditions
and the relative performance of our main competitors

e "We want to be a safe and responsible company regarding our people, the environment, and the
community we serve”
o Measured through an internal index focusing on our effectiveness in managing the
identification and controt of nsk training, involvement and audit, incidents, hazards and
actions This 1s known as the Health and Safety Executive (“HSE") management index

= “We want to be recognised as a leading and respected point of reference on matters concerning
our business”
o This is to be assessed through the Group's position on the Business in the Community
("BITC”) Corporate Responsibility index which 1s an independent assessment by
Business in the Community of our ranking 1n their Corporate Responsibility Index of
participating UK companies

The results for 2007 were

Performance
Ambition Measure 2007 Target against target
Mass Market 74 1% 74 5% (0 4Y%
Care more for our customers Major Business 68 8% 66 0% 28%
Great place to work Employee Satisfaction 75 1% 80 0% {4 9%
Safe and Responsible HSE management index 91 2% 90 0% 12%
BITC Corporate Responsibility
Point of reference index 150 100 50
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Principal nsks and uncertainties

The following reflects the key nsks facing the Group A discussion of the nisks together with a summary of
the Group's approach to managing those risks 1s as follows The accounting basis for dealing with these
rnsks 1s discussed in the accounting policy section below

Margin risk

Margin price nsk anses from the necessity to effectively forecast customer demand for gas, coal and
electricity, and to adequately procure the vanous commodities at a price competitive enough to allow a
favourable tanff proposition for our customers Due to the vertically-integrated nature of the Group the
electricity procured from the generation business provides a natural hedge for the electrnicity demand from
the retail business Any residual exposure to movements in the price of electricity, gas or coal 1s mitigated
by entering mto contracts and hedging options on the forward markets Risk management is monitored
through sensitivity analysis and stop loss per commodity and across commaodity for the whole of EDF
Energy consistently with it's Group nsks mandate

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations on its borrowings and deposits 1s managed principally
through the use of fixed rate debt instruments and swap agreements The Group's policy 1s to use
derivatives to reduce exposure to short-term interest rates and not for speculative purposes

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s present exposure to foreign currency risk 1s imited to the currency exposure on the service
of interest and capital on US dollar and euro denominated debt, and the purchase of energy and EU
emissions certificates The Group policy 1s to hedge/fix known currency exposures as they anse The US
dollar and euro currency swap agreements fix the sterling equivalent that will be reguired to service the
interest and capital repayments of foreign currency debt instruments The Group enters into forward
currency purchase contracts to fix the Sterling pnice for future foreign currency-denominated transactions

Credit risk

The Group's credit nsk 1s pnmarly attnbutable to its trade receivables and amounts recoverable under
fong term contracts The credit nisk on liquid funds and dernvative financial instruments 1s imited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies Risk
of loss 1s monitored through establishment of approved counterparties and maximum counterparty limits
and minimum credit ratings

The Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk, with exposure spread over a large number of
external counterparties and customers Due to the nature of the Group’s trading with other EDF Group
compames, there are large trading balances with other Group companies, however these are not
considered to be a nsk because of parent company financial support

Regulatory risk

There 15 a nsk that the Networks regulated income stream will be significantly reduced because Ofgem
base therr calculations on rnisk free rates This 1s inked to government secunties which have reduced for
other regulated industries Potentially the rate could fall to a level that i1s below EDF Group requirements
(including those associated with historic funding costs) Despite ongoing action plans to engage and
lobby the regulatory authorities this nsk remains cntical to the profitability and cash flow of the regulated
networks business

Health and Safety risk

The health and safety of all our employees, contractors and the public i1s a key rigsk given the nature of the
Group's business To mimimize this nsk, the Group 1s committed to creating a culture that views safe
working as the only way of working and to reviewing all our processes and procedures to ensure they
deliver this Training i1s provided to managers to ensure their understanding of therr roles as far as safety
of the employees they put to work are concerned In addition, a confidential helpline has been set up for
the use of anyone within the organisation to help eradicate unsafe practices and safeguard our
employees
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Directors and their interests

Directors who held office during the year and subsequently were as follows
Daniel Camus Charrman

Vincent de Rivaz Chief Executive

Humphrey A E Cadoux-Hudson Cheef Financial Cfficer
Yann Laroche

Gerard Menjon
Didier Calvez

Humphrey Cadoux-Hudson 1s employed by and has a service contract with the Company The remaining
Directors are employed by and have service contracts with the ultmate parent company Electricité de
France S A ("EDF S A")

There are no contracts of significance during or at the end of the financial year in which a Director of the
Company has a material interest

None of the Directors who held office at the end of the financial year had any interest in the shares of the
Company or any Group company that is required to be disclosed in accordance with the Companies Act
1985

There were qualifying third-party indemmity provisions in place for the benefit of one or more Directors of
the Company during the financial year and at the date of approval of the financial statements

Political and charitable contributions

During the year, the Group made various chantable contributions totalling £2,724,824 (2006 £2,370,505)
and no pohtical contributions (2006 £ni})

Creditors payment policy

The Group's current policy concerning the payment of its trade creditors and other suppliers is to

s setlle the terms of payment with those creditors/suppliers when agreeing the terms of each
transaction,

+ ensure that those creditors/suppliers are made aware of the terms of payment by inclusion of the
relevant terms 1n contracts, and

s pay in accordance with its contractual and other legal obligations
The payment policy applies to all payments to creditors/suppliers for revenue and capital supplies of

goods and services without exception At 31 December 2007, the Group had an average of 59 days
(2006 58 days) purchases outstanding in its trade creditors

Employee involvement

The Group keeps its employees informed on matters affecting them This 1s carned out in a number of
ways, Including formal and informal briefings, departmental meetings and regular reports in staff
newsletters and on the Group intranet
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Equal opportunities

The Group is fully committed to ensunng that al! current and potental future employees and customers
are treated fairly and equally, regardless of therr gender, marital status, disability, race, colour, nationality
or ethnic ongin  The Group provides equal opportunities for employment, training and development,
having regard to particular aptitudes and abilities In the event of employees becoming disabled during
employment, where possible, assistance and retraining 1S given so that they may attain positions
compatible with their ability

Going concern

After making enquines, the Directors have formed a judgement, at the time of approving the financial
statements, that there 1s a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue In
operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements

Auditors
Each of the persons who 1s a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

1 so far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's
Auditors are unaware, and

2 the Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make
himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s Auditors are
aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s234ZA of the
Companies Act 1985

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressed ther willngness to continue in office as auditors and a resolution
to reappoint them will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

S

Thibaut Brac de la Pernere
Company Secretary
149 May 2008
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Repert and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that
law the Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurcpean Union The financial statements are
required by law to be properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and
the Companies Act 1985

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each financial
year the Company's financial pesition, financial performance and cash flows This requires the faithful
representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions tn accordance with the
definttions and recognition crnitenia for assets, habilities, ncome and expenses set out In the International
Accounting Standards Board's 'Framework for the preparation and presentation of financial statements’
In virtually all circumstances, a fair presentation will be achieved by comphance with all applicable IFRSs
However, Directors are also required to

. properly select and apply accounting policies,

. present information, including accounting policies, In a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information,

. provide additional disclosures when complhance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are

insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and
conditions on the entity's financial position and financial performance, and
. make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern

The Directors are responstble for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reascnable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and to enable them fo ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irreguianties
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

EDF Energy plc i1s a wholly-owned subsidiary of EDF SA EDF SA, which, being a company listed on the
Pans Stock Exchange, 1s required to comply with the Lol de Sécunté Financiére (LSF) The LSF requires
the Chairman of EDF SA to provide in the annual report a descnption of the internal controls in the EDF
Group and to provide an opinion on therr effectiveness The Company 1s eligible for exemption from the
Financial Services Authonty's requirements relating to corporate governance disclosures, however the
Directors have decided to provide disclosures which they consider would be valuable to readers, as set
out below

The Group has adopted the EDF Group Internal Control and Audit Policy which provides for

management responsibility for Internal Control,

a requirement to describe the systems of Internal Control,

management to provide assurances on the effectiveness of the systems of Internal Control,

the requirement for remediation plans where the systems of Internal Control are assessed as not
providing the assurances required, and

+ Independent venfication of the assurance process

The Corporate Risk Assurance Policy, implemented in 2003, 1s a statement of what the organisation 1s
seeking to achieve by actively managing nsk It defines a governance structure together with roles and
responsibilities that will aliow the Group to

» promptly and continuously identify, evaluate, effectively control and report new and continuing
risks that are significant at Group level,

« promote a consistent and comprehensive approach to Risk Management throughout EDF
Energy, with strong ownership at Branch level,

« maintain a record of significant nsks faced by each Branch and Corporate Function, together with
remedial action plans and progress reports consolidated into a risk register for EDF Energy, and

+» promote the development of nsk control as a core business process and to provide a framework
and awareness for exploiting opportunities, and containing or preventing loss

Risk Management guilelines have also been developed to prowvide a standard approach to Risk
Management and to facilitate a meaningful censohdation of Group risks

Internal Control

The Board (through the Audit Committee) 1s responsible for the Group’s system of internal contro! and for
reviewing s effectiveness However, such a system can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss, as it 1s designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of fallure to achieve business objectives

During 2007 the Board conducted a self assessment of the systems of Internal Control in EDF Energy
This assessment enabled the Board to describe and evaluate the systems of internal control of the UK
entties and to wentfy areas where attention 15 requred to improve business performance and
effectiveness

The key elements of the Group’s system of internal control include

Control environment

The Group 1s committed to the highest standard of business conduct The Group i1s appropriately
structured according to business areas This allows for effective operattons to achieve the Group’s
objectives Lines of responsibility and levels of authority are formally documented The Group Executive
Committee compnises the Group Chief Executive Officer, Branch Chief Operating Officers and Corporate
Directors This Committee defines authoriies given to individual officers of the Group The Committee
also approves the five-year medium-term plan and budget which 1s the hasis on which the objectives of
the business are agreed and delegated
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Risk identification and control

The Director of Governance and Group Synergies 1s responsible for maintaining an oversight of Group
systems of Internal Control and nsk management, working closely with the branches and other corporate
functions to ensure that their activiies complement each other, and enhance the overall Group position
The objectives are to provide assurance that management of risks is effectively managed and embedded
in day-to-day activities, that sk management activity has sufficient visibility and that there is transparency
around decision-making processes

The relationship between Internal Audit and Risk Assurance requires Risk Assurance to be primarily
responsible for ensunng the identfication of nsks and ther mitigaton and Internal Audit to be
independently responsible for review of the mechanisms that provide assurance

Specific Risk Management Committees have been established where required and operate to address
specific risk areas including energy trading nisk and health and safety

Control activities

Control procedures have been implemented throughout the Group and are designed to ensure complete
and accurate accounting for financial transactions, to safeguard the Group's assets and to ensure
compliance with laws and regulations There are control processes to establish budgets, financial and
service targets in each business unit/subsidiary against which performance 1s monitored in detal and
agreements under which relationships with partners in joint ventures are controlled High-leve! reporting
1Is made by business units/subsidianes and functional heads at corporate level to the Group Executive
Committee and the Board This Committee approves individual projects within the medim-term pian and
approves the award of contracts either directly or by delegated authonity within agreed hmits

Information and communmcation

The performance management cycle 1s based upon a balanced scorecard approach, the scorecard
translates the company ambitions into key measures required to achieve sustainable value Company
measures are cascaded to Branch and Corporate functions and each branch translates the branch
measures Intc team or sub-branch measures with appropnate tracking mechanmisms  For each
performance measure there are agreed targets

Staff policies are In place to ensure that employees are competent, have appropnate skills and receive
information required to effectively perform ther roles  The Group's Intranet 15 widely used to
communicate information to staff

Internal communication to employees concerning employee duties are communicated through job
descriptions, therr personal performance is evaluated through the Coaching for Performance Each
employee’s bonus 1s a reflection of both the company and ther own department's performance, and Is
provided to employees via the Intranet on a monthly basis

Monitoring and corrective action

Group performance I1s continually monitored Branch Chief Operating Officers and Managing Directors
report regularly on operating performance

The Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the Board with advisory responsibility for 1ssues related to
Corporate Governance, risk and internal control This covers all aspects of risk management and the
system of internal control including both financial, operational and compliance controls The scope
includes all EDF Energy plc companies but ultimate responsibiity remains with the Board Membership
includes appointed non-executive representatives representing finance, risk and audit from EDF S A

10
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The Group Executive Committee and Audit Committee recewve reports of key nisks from the business
units These reports include for each nisk an assessment of the likelihood of the nsk occurnng and the
associated impact The nsk reports include the key mitigating controls and an assessment by the
business units of therr adequacy Where appropnate businesses are required to dentify the actions
required and ensure that the nsks are adeguately managed

Internal Audit reviews the operation of internal controls using a risk-based methodology and reports
penodically to the Group Executive Committee and half yearly to the Audit Committee Assignments are
determined by reference to the nsk framework and discussions with senior management including
members of the Group Executive Committee

Effectiveness review

The Group 1s continuously making improvements to the system of internal control The EDF Group
Internal Control and Audit Policy requires, inter alia, the Chief Executive Officer of EDF Energy to provide
an annual report to the Chairman of EDF SA of the qualty of the internal control system

As a result of the 2007 self assessment of the systems of Internal Control in EDF Energy, areas where
attention 1s required to iImprove business performance and effectiveness were identified A programme of
work 1s underway to bring about these improvements

The refationship between Internal Audit and Management requires Management to be primanly
responsible for ensunng that the systems of internal control are iImplemented and operated to such an
extent as to provide reasonable assurance that the objectives of the business will be met or that the risks
or threats to the business are mitigated Internal Audit 1s independently responsible for review of the
mechanisms that provide assurance and for providing advice and guidance to management on the
approprateness of Internal Control mechanisms and systems

Material weaknesses

Significant weaknesses In internal control are reported to the Group Executve Committee and, If
appropriate, to the Audit Committee

11




EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EDF ENERGY PLC

We have audited the Consolidated and Company financial statements (the "financial statements"} of EDF
Energy plc for the year ended 31 December 2007 which compnse the Consclidated Income Statement,
the Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements,
the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 46 These
financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the
Compantes Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

The directors' responsibilitres for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union are set out 1n the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilibes

Our respeonsibility 1s to audit the financial statements In accordance with relevant legal and regutatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and have
been properly prepared In accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulaton We also report to you whether in our opinion the information
given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the financial statements

In addition we report to you If, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we
have not recelved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or If information specified
by law regarding directors’ remuperation and other transactions I1s not disclosed

We read the other information contained 1n the Annual Report as described in the contents section and
consider whether 1t 1s consistent with the audited financial statements We consider the implicatiens for
our report If we become aware of any apparent misstatements or materal inconsistencies with the
financial statements Our responsibiities do not extend to any further information outside the Annual
Report

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) i1ssued
by the Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant
eshmates and judgements made by the Directors 1n the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and Company's circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty
or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information
in the financial statements

12
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EDF ENERGY PLC continued
Opinion

In our opinion

. the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, of the state of the Group's affarrs as at 31 December 2007 and of its profit for
the year then ended,

. the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union as appled in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 1985, of the state of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2007,

. the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation, and
. the information given n the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the financial statements

Delote & Touls f

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

| May 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

2007 2006
Notes £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 5 57596 5,688 9
Fuel and energy purchases 7 (3,524 3) {3,343 3)
Gains/(losses) on dernvative contracts 6 103.9 (829
Gross margin 2,339 2 22827
Matenials and contracting costs (450 2) (366 3)
Other operating expenses (604 8) (669 7)
Personnel expenses 9 (417 8) (377 5)
Other operating income 5 89 227
Profit before depreciation, amortisation, tax and finance costs 875.3 8919
Depreciation and amortisation 6 {320.1) (298 2)
Operating profit 555.2 5937
Investment revenue 5 11 71.4 734
Finance costs 12 (289 7) (2486 3)
Profit hefore taxation and associates 3369 4208
Share of losses of associates 22 (31.4) {20 6)
Profit before taxation 3055 400 2
Taxation 13 {65.9) (58 1)
Profit for the financial year 239.6 3421
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 40 2394 3418
Minority interest 35 0.2 02
239.6 3421
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BALANCE SHEETS

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

AT 31 DECEMBER 2007 GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes £m £m £m £m
Non-current
Goodwill 16 1,260 0 1,260 8 0.6 06
Other intangible assets 18 248.7 2737 164.8 176 3
Property, plant and equipment 19 7,251.0 6,750 3 43.7 450
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 21 - - 2,232.2 24161
Interests m associates 22 57.6 529 - -
Investments 24 0.7 261 - 25
Derivatives and other financial instruments 32 2110 874 209.9 865
Finance lease receivables 25 368 2 3320 - -
Deferred tax asset 34 - - - 244 8
9,397.2 8,783 2 26512 29718
Current assets
Investments 24 0.5 - 05 -
Inventories 26 203.3 2757 1355 2093
Trade and other recevables 27 1,619.8 1,6950 1,142 1 1,994 3
Current tax receivable 33.5 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 29 193.8 166 3 669.4 -
Denvatives and other financial instruments 32 4344 2547 434.4 2547
Finance lease receivables 25 407 47 3 - -
2,526.0 24390 23819 24583
Non-current assets held for sale 20 - 21 - -
Assets classified within disposal group 14 37.0 - - -
Total assets 11,960 2 11,2243 5,033.1 5,430 1
Current Liabilities
Current tax habiities - (37 1) - -
Obligations under finance lease 36 (13.2) (12 5) - -
Borrowings 31 {1,838.0) {1,706 5} {1,610.0y (1,709 7)
Derivatives and other financial instruments 32 {158.3) {839 9) (158 3) (838 0)
Short-term provisions 33 (225.5) (237 8) {(10.7) (12 5)
Other liabilities 30 {1,850.1) {1,651 7) (1,009 1) (1,327 2)
{4,085.1) {4,485 5) (2,788.1) (3,887 4)
Non-current habihities
Obhgations under finance lease 36 (306.2) (323 7) - -
Borrowings 31 (2,260.2) (2,199 1) (367.1) (336 9)
Deferred tax hability 34 (983 3) (646 8) {108.4) -
Long-term provisions 33 {61 9) (75 4) {3 4) (26)
Post-employment benefits provision 43 (202.4) (257 2) (156) (17 1)
Other liabilties 30 (1,377.2) (1,251 4) - -
Denvatives and other financial instruments 32 (122 7) {328 0) (956) (295 6)
(5,313.9) {5,081 6) (590 1) (652 2)
Liabilities classified within disposal group 14 {28 &) - - -
Total liabihties (9,427.6) {9,567 1) (3,378.2) (4,5396)

Net assets

2,5326 1,657 2 1,654.9 8905
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BALANCE SHEETS continued
AT 31 DECEMBER 2007

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006

Notes £m Em £m £m
Equity
Share capital 38 1,296.6 1,296 6 1,296.6 1,296 6
Share premium account 39 139 139 139 139
Capital and redemption reserves 39 211 216 13.0 131
Hedging reserve 41 200.5 (545 1) 224.0 (528 4)
Retained earnthgs 40 997.1 8677 107.4 953
Equity attributable to equity holders of 2,529.2 16547 1,654 9 8905
the parent
Minonity interest 35 34 25 - -
Total equity 25326 1,657 2 1,654 9 8905

The accounts on pages 14 to 81 were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 May 2008

and signed on its behalf by

Vincent de\Ridaz
Director

Humphrey A E Cadoux-Hudson
Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

EDF ENERGY PLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2007

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006

Notes £m £m Em £m
Net cash from operating activities 42 887.3 6412 674.1 (908 5)
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (801.0) {616 3) {10 3) (12 2)
Purchase of intangible assets {11.8) (25 5) (7.6) (2 9}
Receipts of customer contribution 176.4 137 6 - -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 144 364 8.2 271
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets - - - 46 3
Payments to increase share of associates (32.0) {119 - -
Repayment of loans - - 183.9 -
Increase In long-term receivables (8.5) (10 5) 20 13
Interest element of finance lease rental payments (21.7) (22 1) - -
Dwvidends received from investments 91 - 712 00
Interest received 243 46 4 928 938
tncrease/(decrease) in finance lease recewvable 3.5 (35 8) - -
Reclassified within disposal group (3.9} - - -
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities (651.2) (5017) 340.2 183 2
Financing activities
Dwidends paid to equity holders of the parent (110.0) (105 Q) (110 0) {105 0)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases (16.7) {13 0) - -
Proceeds from borrowings 545 2 473 0 4147 548 8
Repayment of borrowings (361 6) (258 3) - -
Issuance of intra-group loans - - - (118 0)
Interest paid (2455) (236 0) (135.2) (99 2)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (188 6) (139 3) 169.5 226 6
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 27.5 02 1,183 8 (498 7)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 166.3 166 1 (514 4) (15 7)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 29 193 8 166 3 669 4 (514 4)
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share Share Capital Hedging Retained Minority Total
Capital Premium Reserves Reserve  Earnings Interest equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2006 1,296.6 13.9 21.6 259.6 630.8 2.2 22,2247

Net losses on cash

flow hedges - - - (1,153 4) - - (1,153.4)
Deferred taxation

on net losses on

cash flow hedges - - - 348 7 - - 3487

Total income for the
year recognised

directly in equity - - - (804 7) - - {804 7)
Profit for the year - - - - 3419 02 3421

Total income for - - - - 341.9 02 3421

the year

Additions - - - - - 01 0.1

Equity dwvidends - - - - (105 0) - {105 0)
At 1 January 2007 1,296.6 13.9 216 (545 1) 867.7 25 1,657.2

Net gains on cash

flow hedges - - - 1,057 9 - - 1,057 9
Deferred taxation

on net gains on

cash flow hedges - - - (312 3) - - (312.3)

Total iIncome for the
year recognised

directly in equity - - - 7456 - - 745.6
Profit for the year - - - - 2394 02 2396
Total income for - - - - 2384 02 2396
the year

Capital injection - - - - - 07 07
Share scheme - - (05) - - - (0 5)
Equity dividends - - - - (110 0) - (110.0)
At 31 December 1,296.6 139 211 200.5 997.1 3.4 25326

2007

18




COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2007

Share Share Capital Hedging Retained Total
Capital Premium Reserves Reserve Earnings Equity
£m £m Em Em £m £m
At 1 January 2006 1,296.6 139 13.1 2898 94.6 1,708.0
Net losses on cash flow - - - (1,168 8) - (1,168 8)
hedges
Deferred taxation on net
losses on cash flow hedges - - - 3506 - 3506
Total income for the year
recognised directly in equity - - - (818 2) - (818.2)
Profit for the year - - - - 1057 105.7
Equity dividends - - - - (105 0) (105 0)
At 1 January 2007 1,296 6 139 13.1 (528.4) 95.3 8905
Net gains on cash flow hedges - - - 1,046 0 - 1,046.0
Deferred taxation on net gains
on cash flow hedges - - - (2938) - {293 6)
Share scheme - - {0 1) - - (01)
Total ncome for the year - - {01) 752 4 - 752.3
recognised directly in equity
Profit for the year - - - - 1221 122 1
Equity dividends - - - - {110 Q) {110.0)
At 31 December 2007 1,296 6 13.9 130 2240 107.4 1,654.9
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. General information

EDF Energy plc 1s a company incorporated In the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 1985 The
address of the registered office 1s given on page 1 The nature of EDF Energy plc and its subsidiaries’
(together the “Group” or “EDF Energy”) operations and therir principal activiies are set out in note 4 and in
the Directors’ Report on pages 2 -7 .
These financial statements are presented in pounds sterhng because that s the currency of the pnmary
economic environment in which the Group operates

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards

At 1 January 2007 the Group adopted IFRS7 Financial Instruments Disclosures and has prepared
comparative information under the standard for 2006 At the date of authonisation of these financial
statements, the following Standards and interpretations were in 1ssue but not yet effective and therefore
not adopted

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

The amendment to 1AS 1 relating to the statement of comprehensive income

The amendment to IAS 23 Boerrowing costs relating to qualifying assets

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC 14 IAS 19-The Limut on a Defined Benefit Asset, Mirimum Funding Requirements and ther
Interaction

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future periods (with
the exception of the amendment to 1AS 23) will have no material impact on the financial statements of the
Group, except to provide some additional disclosure Due to the nature of the Group's activities, there
may potentially be some future capital expenditure on qualfying assets for which borrowing costs should
be capitaliised At this point In time 1t 1s not possible to quantify the size of the impact

2. Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

In the current year the Group has adopted all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards and
Interpretations 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the 1ASB) and the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Commuttee (the IFRIC) of the IASB that are relevant to its operations
and effective for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2007 and endorsed by the EU (IFRS)

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for dervative
financial instruments that have been measured at farr value

Basis of consohdation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidianes) made up to 31 December each year

The financial statements of the subsidianies are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent
company, using consistent accounting policies Control 1s achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities
All intercompany balances, and transactions, including unrealsed profits ansing from intra-group
transactions, are elminated on consoldation The carrying value of subsidianes includes equity
investment and long term loans to subsidianes
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2 Significant accounting policies continued

Basis of consolidation continued

Minornity interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's
equity therein  Minonty interests consist of the amount of those Interests at the date of the cnginal
business combination and the minority's share of changes in equity since the date of the combination
Losses applicable to the minorty In excess of the mmonty's interest in the subsidiary’'s equity are
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the mmonty has a binding obligation
and 1s able to make an additional iInvestment to cover the losses

No income statement 15 presented for EDF Energy plc (the Company) in accordance with the exemptions
allowed by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 The profit dealt with in the Company for the year was
£122 1m before dividends paid (2006 £105 7m)

Business combinations

The Group accounts for purchases of subsidiaries using the purchase method The cost 1Is measured as
the tetal fair value on the date of acquisition of assets, labilittes and equity instruments given as
consideration, plus any costs directly incurred in the purchase The assets and labiities acquired are
measured at fair value on the date of acquisition, except for assets and babilities that are classified as
held for sale or in a disposal group In accerdance with IFRS 5 Non Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations, which are measured at fair value less costs of disposal

Any minonty interest in the acquired entity 1s initially measured at the minonty proportion of the fair value
of assets and habilities recognised

Goodwill ansing on acquisition 1s recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the Group's interest in the net farr value of the identifiable
assets, habities and contingent habities I, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, habilities and contingent lhabiliies exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess 1s recognised immediately in the profit or loss

The interest of minonty shareholders in the acquiree 1s imbally measured at the minonty's proportion of
the net fair value of the assets, habiliies and contingent habilites recognised

Investments in associates

An associate 15 an entity over which the Group 1s 1n a position to exercise significant influence, but not
control or joint control, through participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
Significant influence s the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
Investee but 1s not control or joint contral over those policies

The results and assets and liabilihes of associates are incorperated in these financial statements using
the equity method of accounting Investments in associates are carried in the balance sheet at cost pilus
post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate less any imparment in the
value of individual investments Losses of the associates in excess of the Group's interest in those
associates are not recognised

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the fairr values of the identifiable net
assets, of the associate at the date of acquisition 1s recognised as goodwill netted against the investment
Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the Group's share of the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the associate at the date of acquisition (1e discount on acquisition) 1s credited In the income
statement in the period of acquisition

Where a Group company transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to

the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate Losses may provide evidence of an
impawrment of the asset transferred in which case appropriate provision 1s made for impairment
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2 Significant accounting policies continued

Interest in joint ventures

The Group’'s interests In Its jont ventures are accounted for by proportionate consolidation, which
involves recognising a proportionate share of the joint venture’s assets, liabilities, income and expenses
with similar tems In the consclidated financial statements on a line-by-line basis

Where the Group transacts with its jointly-controlled entities, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in the joint venture

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
interest in the farr value of the identifiable assets and labilities of a subsidiary, associate or jointly
controlled entity at the date of acquisiion Goodwill 1s nutially recognised as an asset at cost and 1s
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses

Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently If events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impared For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating units and these are tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there I1s an indication that the umt may be impaired If the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit i1s less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss 1s allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the untt  Any impairment loss 1s recognised
immediately in the iIncome statement and 1s not reversed in a subsequent period

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets mainly consist of IT software IT software 1s initially recognised at cost and 15
amortised over a useful economic life of 3-8 years

Foreign currency translation

The functional and presentation currency of EDF Energy plc 1s pounds sterling Transactions in foreign
currency are imitially recorded in the functional currency rate at the rate on the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and habilittes denominated n foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rate of exchange ruling at the bafance sheet date All differences are taken to the Consolidated
Income Statement

In order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into forward contracts
(see below for detals of the Group's accounting policies in respect of such denvative financial
instruments)

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the revenue can be reliably measured Revenue includes amounts receivable for goods and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes

Energy Supply Revenue i1s recognised on the basis of electricity and gas supplied during the period and
15 attnbutable to the continuing and acquired activities of supply of electnaity and gas and the acquired
activity of meter reading and related services This includes an estimate of the sales value of units and
therms supplied to customers between the date of the last meter reading and the year-end, and the
invoice value of other gecods sold and services provided Any unbilled revenue 1s included in trade
receivables to the extent that it 1s considered recoverable, based on historic data
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2. Significant accounting policies continued

Revenue recognition continued

Distnbution Revenue relating to Distnbution Use of System {DUoS) charges i1s attnbutable to the
continuing activity of electricity distnbution  This includes an estimate of the sales value of units supplied
to customers between the date of the last meter reading the year end The fees paid by customers upon
connection to the network (connection fees) are recorded as deferred income and transferred to sales
over a penod that depends on the useful iife of the assets they contribute to

Long-term contracts Revenue from long-term contracts 1s recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy on construction contracts (see below)

Interest Income Interest iIncome 1s recognised as the interest accrues (using the effective interest method
that I1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument) to the net carrying amount of the financial asset

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in
value Borrowing costs incurred relating to the construction or purchase of fixed assets 1s not capitalised
and 1s charged to the income statement as incurred Depreciation 1s calculated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful fe of the asset and charged to income as follows

Generation assets - Upto 20 years
Overhaul of generation assets - 4 years
Overhead and underground lines - 45 to 60 years
Network plant and builldings - 20 to 60 years
Freehold land - Not depreciated
Other buildings
-freehold - Up to 40 years
-leasehold - Lower of lease penod or 40 years
Vehicles and mobile plant - 51to 10 years
Fixtures and equipment - 3 to B years

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over therr expected useful ives on the same basis as
owned assets or, where shorter, over the term of the relevant lease

Contributions received from third parties towards distribution network assets, which include capital grants,
are credited to the balance sheet as deferred income on receipt and amortised to the income statement
over the lives of the distnbution network assets to which they relate

Assets In the course of construction are carned at cost, less any recognised impairment loss
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than continuing use This condition I1s regarded as met only
when the sale 15 highly probable and the asset or disposal group I1s avaiable for immediate sale in its
present condition The Group must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualfy for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2. Significant accounting policies continued

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net reahsable value Cost includes all costs incurred in
bringing each product to its present location and condition The cost of raw materials, consumables and
goods for resale I1s calculated using the weighted average cost basis Work-in-progress and finished
goods are valued using the cost of direct matenals and labour plus attributable overheads based on a
normal level of activity Net realisable value represents the estimated selhing prnce less any further costs
expected to be incurred in completion and disposal

Provisions are made for obsolete, slow-moving or defective items where appropriate
Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the penod in which they are incurred
EU Emissions trading scheme

The Group recognises its free emissions allowances received under the National Allocation Plan at nil
cost Purchased emissions allowances are initially recognised at cost (purchase price) within intangible
assets A habilty 1s recognised when the level of emissions exceeds the level of allowances granted The
hability 1s measured at the cost of purchased allowances up to the level of purchased allowances held,
and then at the market price of allowances ruing at the balance sheet date Movements are
recognised within operating profit  Forward contracts for the purchase or sale of emissions allowances
are measured at far value with gains and losses arising from changes in farr value recognised tn the
income statement The intangible assets are surrendered at the end of the compliance period reflecting
the consumption of economic benefit As a result no amortisation 1s recorded dunng the penod

Long term contracts

Where the outcome of a long term contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date  This 1s normally
recognised by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated
total contract costs, except where this would not be representative of the stage of completion Vanations
In contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have been agreed
with the customer

Where the outcome of a long term contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
to the extent of contract cosis incurred that it ts probable will be recoverable Contract costs are
recogrnised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred

When 1t 1s probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss 1s
recognised as an expense immediately

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it i1s probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation If the effect of
the time value of money 1s matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the nisks specific to the habiity
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2  Significant accounting policies continued

Arrangements containing a lease

In comphance with interpretation IFRIC 4, the Group identifies agreements that convey the nght to use an
asset or group of specific assets to the purchaser although they do not have the legal form of a lease
contract, In that the purchaser in the arrangement benefits from a substantial share of the asset’s
production and payment in not dependent on production or market price

Such arrangements are treated as leases, and analysed with reference to IAS 17 for classification as
either operating or finance leases

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nsks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases Rentals
payable under operating leases are charged in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
lease term Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value or,
if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determmed at the inception of the lease
The corresponding labiity to the lessor 1s included 1n the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hability, with charges being recognised
directly in the income statement

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments Is
recognised as a receivable The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the
receivable 1s recognised as unearned finance income Lease income 1s recognised over the term of the
lease, on a straight-line basis, using the net investment method, which recognises a constant periodic
rate of return When assets are leased out under an operating lease, assets are carrnied on the balance
sheet based on the nature of the asset

Taxation
The income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported In the iIncome statement because it excludes tems of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group's
habiity for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date

Deferred income tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and habilities n the financial statements and the cerresponding tax bases used In the
computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet liabiity method Deferred tax
habihties are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be ubilsed Such assets and habilities are not recognised if the temporary
differences anse from goodwill or from the imtial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and habiities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax lhabilites are recognised for taxable temporary differences arnsing on mvestments n
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group Is able to controf the
reversal of the temporary differences and it 1s probable that the temporary differences will not reverse In
the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2 Significant accounting policies contmued

Taxation continued

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penod when the hability is
settled or the asset realsed Deferred tax 1s charged or credited 1n the income statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in
equity ™~

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable rnight to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabiliies on a net basis

Deferred tax s measured on an undiscounted basis

Retirement benefit costs

The Group cperates defined benefit pension schemes The cost of providing benefits 1s determined using
the projected unit credit method with actuanat valuations being carned out at each balance sheet date
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised as income or expense when the net cumulative unrecognised
actuarial gains or losses for each indwvidual plan at the end of the previous reporting year exceeded 10%
of the higher of the defined benefit obligation or the fair value of plan assets at that date These gains or
losses are recognised over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating
in the plans Past service cost I1s recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already
vested, and otherwise 1s amortised on a straight-ine basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested

The retirement benefit obligation recognised on the balance sheet represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuanal gains and losses and unrecognised past
service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets Any asset resulting from this calculation
15 imited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service cost, plus the present value of avallable
refunds and reductions in future contributions to the ptan

Financial instruments

Financial assets and labilties are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

Trade receivables

Trade recervables are measured at initial recognition at onginal invoice amount and are subsequently
measured at far value An allowance 1s recognised 1n the income statement for irrecoverable amounts
when there I1s evidence that the asset 1s impaired The allowance 1s calculated as the difference between
the carrying amount and the expected future cash flows from the asset

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash in hand and other short-term hquid investments which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant nsk of changes in value

Financial lrabilitres and equity
Financial habilities are classified according to the nature of the contractual obligations, and are based on

the definition of liability An equity instrument 1s a contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group

26




EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2, Significant accounting policies continued

Financial instruments continued
interest-bearning loans and borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are inthally measured at proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue
costs Foreign currency denominated bank lcans and overdrafts are restated at closing exchange rates
with any movements going through the ncome statement unless it 1s designated as a cash flow hedge
Any differences between the proceeds and the settlement/redemption of the borrowings are measured on
an accrual basis and recognised over the life of the instrument

Trade payables
Trade payables are measured at farr value
Dervalives and other financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group's activities expose 1t to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity
prices including sale and purchase prices of gas, coal and electricity

The Group uses dernvatives and other financial instruments to hedge its nsks associated with price
fluctuations relating to forecasted transactions and contractual obligations Foreign currency nisk anses
from bonds which are denominated in foreign currencies and from foreign currency denominated
commodity purchases such as coal and carbon The Group's policy 15 to hedge/fix known currency
exposures through currency swap and forward agreements that fix the Sterling equivalent that will be
required to service the contractual obligation

Commodity price nsk anses from the forward purchases of gas, coal and electncity When commodity
contracts have been entered into as part of the Group’'s normal business activity, the Group seeks to
classify them as “own use” contracts and outside the scope of IAS 39 This 1s achieved when

« aphysical delivery takes place under all such contracts,

* the volumes purchased or sold under the contracts correspond to the Group’s operating
requirements, and

+ the contracts are not considered as wntten options as defined by the standard

Commodity contracts not qualifying as ‘own use' which also meet the definition of a derivative are within
the scope of IAS 39 This includes both financial and nen-financial contracts

The use of derivatives and other financial instruments 1s governed by the Group's policies, approved by
the Board of Directors The Group does not use denvatives and other financial instruments for
speculative purposes

Denvatives and other financial instruments are measured at farr value on the contract date and are re-
measured to far value at subsequent reporting dates Changes in the fair value of dervatives and other
financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income statement as
they anse Changes n the fair values of denvative financial instruments that are designated as hedges of
future cash flows are recognised directly In equity with any neffective element being recognised
immediately in the income statement

The Group classifies hedges in the following categories
Farr value hedges

These mstruments hedge the exposure to changes in the far value of an asset or hiability recorded in the
balance sheet, or a firm commitment to purchase or sell an asset Changes in the far value of the
hedged item attnbutable to the hedged component of that item are recorded in the iIncome statement and
offset by corresponding vanations in the fair vafue of the hedging instrument Only the ineffective portion
of the hedge has an impact on income
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2. Significant accounting policies continued

Financial instruments continued
Cash flow hedges

These instruments hedge highly probable future transactions, the vanability 1n cash flows generated by
the hedged transaction 1s offset by changes in the value of the hedging instrument The effective portion
of accumulated changes in the hedge’s far value I1s recorded in equity, and the ineffective portion (1 e
changes In the fair value of the hedging instrument in excess of changes 1n the farr value of the item) 1s
recorded In the income statement When the hedged cash flows matenalise, the amounts previously
recognised in equity are transferred to the income statement in the same way as for the hedged item

Hedge accounting

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument 1s sold, terminated, exercised or no
longer qualifies as a hedging instrument At that time, for any forecast transactions, the cumulative gain or
loss I1s retained in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs I the transaction 1s no longer expected
to occur, any gan or loss I1s recognised immediately in the income statement for the penod

Dernivatives embedded in cther financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate
derivatives when their nisks and characternistics are not closely related to those of the host centract, and
the host contract 1s not carried at farr value with unrealised gains or losses reported In the income
statement

Due to the vertically integrated nature of the Group the electncity demand from the retaill business
provides a natural hedge for the electncity procured from the generation business Any residual exposure
to movements in the price of electncity, gas or coal 1s mitigated by entering into contracts and hedging
options on the forward markets Risk of loss 1s mitigated through establishment of approved
counterparties and maximum counterparty lmits and mimmum credit ratings

Gains and losses on gas, electnoity and coal contracts designated as cash flow hedges are deferred and
recognised in the income statement when the hedged transaction occurs Gains and losses on any
contracts which have not been designated as cash flow hedges are credited/charged to the income
statement in the period in which they arise

Share-based payments

EDF Energy plc's ulbmate parent company, Electricité de France S A ("EDF") 1s listed on Euronext, the
French stock exchange Any share-based payments to employees are measured at farr value at the date
the shares are 1ssued The farr value 1s measured using the Black-Scholes modei, taking into account any
preferential terms offered to staff such as discounts and free shares Any share-based payments to
employees which are not 1ssued to employees but transferred (1 e no additional share capital) and equity
settled are valued at market value on date of announcement Any contribution to the scheme 1s charged
to the income statement in the period in which it anses, at the farr value determined, and apportioned in a
straight-ine basis over the vesting period A corresponding amount 15 recognised as a capital
contribution from EDF within equity  Any repayment required to EDF 1s measured at the market value of
the penod end and recognised as a habilty and reduced capital contribution
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3 Cntical accounting jJudgements and key scurces of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, some critical accounting judgements have
been applied by management and some balances are based on estmates

Critical accounting jJudgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies
Revenue recognition

Turnover includes an estimate of the sales value of units supplied tc customers between the date of the
last meter reading and the year end This i1s calculated by reference to data receved thrcugh the
settlement systems but not billed together with estimates of consumption not yet processed through
settlements and selling price estimates These statistics and estimates are sensitive to the assumptions
used in determining the portion of sales not billed at the reporting date

Revenue 1s valued at average pence per unit, and any unbilled revenue s treated as an unbilled debtor
Management adjust this figure based on a judgement of the likelihaod of collecting the outstanding debt
based on historical data

Provisions

Provisions for liabilities are made where a liability exists but 1s uncertain in respect of amount or when the
hability will fall due Provisions are made against bad and doubtful debt as well as obsolete stock
Provision against debtors 15 eshmated based on applying a percentage provision rate to the aged debt
book at the end of each period The provision rates are based on the companson of historical rates of
collection compared to biling data Any over- or under-statement of the provision 1s essentially a timing
difference to the actual wnte-off level Provision 1s made against stock taking account of the age of the
asset, using predefined formulae derived from actual expenence

Decommissioning provisions

The Group has provided for decommissioning its three power stations These provisions are based on the
experience of other companies within the EDF Group, adjusted for specific 1ssues associated with each
power station and are discounted Expected future costs of decommissioning are monitored to ensure
that the provision remains at an adequate level Further information about decommissioning provisions
can be found in note 33

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

The pension deficit 1s caiculated by independent quallfied actuaries, based on actual payroll data and
certain actuanal assumptions These actuanal assumptions are made to model potential future costs and
benefits and include, life expectancy, rates of returns on plan assets, inflation and expected retirement
age These assumptions are reviewed on an annual basis and may change based on current market
data Changes in assumptions could lead to addittonal actuanal gains and losses being recognised
Further information 1s available about pensions in note 43

Goodwill impairment

The mmpairment review for goodwill 1s based on the Group's medium-term plans and assumptions
concerning discount rates  Further detall on the assumptions used In the calculation can be found Iin
note 17

Fair value of energy dervatives

The valuations of these derivatives are esttmates based, where avallable, on published forward price
curves Where pubhshed information 1s not availlable, valuation techmiques have been used to
determine farr values

The Group estimates fair values for the commodity contracts using tradable contract prices quoted In the
active market and using valuation techniques reflecting market views These are then discounted using the
published LIBOR curve for the time value of money and adjusted for counterparty credit risk
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3 Cntical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

The Group considers that the UK market for commodity contracts including gas and electricity 1s active for
up to two to three years forward, with reliable broker quotes and pubiished prices available, therefore in this
active period commodity contracts are valued at forward market prices as at 31 December Outside the
active period where liquidity in the market I1s low, due to the available range of contract quotes limited to
seasonal contracts, a number of interpolation/extrapolation methods are used based on market
expectations

Counter-party credit risk 1s applied to cover the nsk of default by individual counterparties and the financial
benefits of contracts Credit ratings used are based on Standard & Poor's and Moody's published figures
and applied to the net position by counterparty where the Group has a legal nght and practicé of net
settlement The majonty of significant exposures are with A-rated counterparties or better

The main market-based drivers are power, gas and EU emissions trading allowances, which whilst not
actively traded in the period, are dernved from current future prices and from a long-term forecast The
contract capacity costs have been estimated using the terms of the contract, and the understanding gained
of the relevant operating costs that will be passed through

Fair values for foreign exchange denvatives and for interest rate dernvatives have been determined with
reference to closing market prices at 31 December The Group has designated certain foreign exchange
denvatives as fair value hedges In each case, the nisk being hedged 1s foreign exchange risk

The Group has designated certain power, gas and coal denvatives as cash flow hedges of forecast
transactions In each case the nsk being hedged 1s commodity price nsk

Financial lease arrangements

The Group accounts for some long-term contracts as financial lease arrangements In order to evaluate
these arrangements, detailed financial models have been drawn up, which include specific assumptions
regarding margins on construction, operating costs and mantenance expenditure, as well as forecast
capital expenditure, interest rates and inflation rates Any changes in these assumptions would impact
upon the profit recognition within the lease models -

4 Segment information

The Group’s primary reporting format 1s business segments and its secondary format 1s geographical
segments The operating businesses are organised and managed separately according to the nature of
the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers
different preducts and serves different markets

Networks Branch Transfer of electricity from where it 1s received in bulk, across the distribution systems
and its delivery to consumers It 1s also responsible for the operation, maintenance and expansion of
private electrical distribution systems

Customer and Energy Branch includes the generation, purchase and supply of electricity to customers
and purchase and supply of gas to customers

Other This pnmariy includes the provision of services to the Group, e g faclities, property and
insurance All assets held for sale are included within Other

Transfer prices between business segments are set on an arm’'s length basis in a manner similar to
transactions with third parties

The Group's geographical segment I1s determined by the location of the Group’s assets and operations
All revenue, expense and transactions take place in the United Kingdom Also all assets and liabilities
are entirely In the United Kingdom and hence no separate tables have been disclosed for the
geographical segment
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4 Segment information continued

Group segmental analysis 31 December 2007

Year ended 31 December 2007 Networks Customer Other Total
and Operations
Energy

£m £m £m £m
Revenue .
Sales to external customers 1,152 0 45975 101 5,759.6
Inter-segment sales 2869 206 (307 5) -
Segment revenue 1,438 9 46181 (297 4) 57596
Result
Operating profit 4806 628 118 555.2
Investment revenue 71.4
Finance costs {289.7)
Profit before taxation 336.9
Share of losses of associates (31 4}
Taxation (65.9)
Profit for the year from operations 2396

Inter segment sales are made at prevailing market prices

Assets and liabilities

Segment assets 6,407 5 3,598 1 1,897 0 11,902.6
Investment in associates - 55 4 22 57.6
Total assets 6,407 5 36535 1,899 2 11,960 2
Segment liabilities (40175) (29437) (14831) (8,444.3)
Unallocated habilities - - {983 3) (983.3)
Total habmties (4,017 5) (2,9437) (2,4664) (9,427.6)

Other segment information
Capital expenditure

Tangible and intangible fixed assets 669 9 126 8 16 1 812.8
Depreciation 1930 917 115 296 2
Amortisation 01 207 31 23.9
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4. Segment information continued

Group segmental analysis 31 December 2006-

Year ended 31 December 2006 Networks Customer Other Total
and Operations
Energy

£m £m £m £m
Revenue
Sales to external customers 1,059 4 46212 83 5,688.9
Inter-segment sales 290186 187 (3103) -
Segment revenue 1,351 0 46399 (3020) 5,688 9
Result
Operating profit 493 5 54 1 451 593.7
Investment revenue 734
Finance costs (246.3)
Profit before taxation 420.8
Share of profit of associates (20.6)
Taxation (58.1)
Profit for the year from operations 3421

Inter segment sales are made at prevailing market prices

Assets and liabilities

Segment assets 6,268 3 36809 12222 11,1714
Investment In associates 296 233 - 529
Total assets 68,2979 37042 12222 11,224.3
Segment habilities (4437 1) (4,0990) (3842) (8,920 3)
Unallocated liabilities - - (646 8) (646 8)
Total liabilities {4,437 1) (4,099 () (1,031 0) {9,567.1)

Other segment information
Capital expenditure

Tangible and intangible fixed assets 547 8 234 5 118 7941
Depreciation 1669 86 3 236 276.8
Amortisation 02 187 25 214

During 2007, the Regulated Networks branch and the Development branch merged and hence have been
included together within the Networks branch for segmental purposes As a result the 2006 segmental has
been restated
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5. Revenue

An analysis of the Group's revenue Is as follows

EDF ENERGY PLC
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Year ended Year ended

2007 2006

£m £m

Sales of goods and services 5,639.6 5,566 0
Revenue from long-term contracts {note 28) 109.5 106 2
Property rental income 6.1 69
Other revenue 4.4 98
5,759.6 56889

Other operating income 8.9 227
Investment revenue (note 11) 714 734
Total revenue 5,839.9 57850

Other operating iIncome relates to the profit on disposal of non-current assets

The estimates used can be validated after year-end through the existing settlement process Such process
takes up to 14 months post year-end The effect of this in 2007 for items relating to earlier periods was to
reduce reported revenue In the year by approximately £73million

Revenue excludes the gains arising on fair value of contracts under 1AS 39

6. Profit for the year

Profit before taxation for the year has been amved at after

charging/{crediting) the following gains and losses

Net foreign exchange gains

Research and development costs

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {note 1)
Amortisaticn of intangible assets (ncte 18)

Impairment of goodwill {(note 16)

Staff costs (note 9)

Auditors’ remuneration for audit services

Auditors’ remuneration for non-audit services (see below)

Cost of inventories recognised as expense

Fair valuation of derivative commodity contracts
Operating lease rentals

Movement in bad debt provision (note 27)
Impairment losses recognised on trade receivables

Reversal of imparrment losses recognised on trade receivables

2007
£m

04
70
296 2
239
0.8
417.8
1.1
04
639.1
(103.9)
3.5
35.5
41.4
(2 1)

Provision for impairment of financial assets and liabilities relating to

Metronet, {before tax relief of £15 Om (2006 £ni1))
Provision for imparment of investment in Metronet

41.8
382

2006
£m

(0 3}

276 8
214

377 5
09
07

454 3

629

374

462
(28
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6. Profit for the year continued

The analysis of Auditors’ remuneration 1s as follows

Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the Company's
and Group accounts
The audit of the Company’'s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation

Total audit fees

Nen-statutory interim review

Tax services

Other services pursuant to legislation
Other services

Total non-audit fees

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

2007 2006
£m £m
0.2 01
0.9 08
11 09
0.1 01
0.1 02
0.1 01
0.1 03
04 o7

Fees payable to Deloitte & Touche LLP and their associates for non-audit services to the Company are not
required to be disclosed because the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on

a consolidated basis

7. Fuel and energy purchases

2007 2006
£m £m
Purchase of energy 2,796 7 2,742 9
Distribution and transmission 6294 546 1
Carbon certificates 130 2 833
Release of onerous contracts and other provisions (32 0) (29 0)
Total fuel and energy purchases 3,524 3 3,3433
8. Directors’ emoluments

2007 2006
£m fm
Emoluments 12 11
2007 2006
Number Number
Members of defined benefit pension scheme 1 1
2007 2006
£m £m

Emoluments payabie to the highest paid director were as follows
Aggregate emoluments 07 07
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9. Personnel expenses

Staff costs arising 1n the year, including Directors’ emoluments were as follows

2007 2006

GROUP £m £m
Wages and salaries 420.5 348 6
Social security costs 36.4 323
Pension costs 59.0 538
Cost of granting shares to employees 2.6 -
Less capitalised cosls {100 7) (57 3)
417.8 3775

Capitalised staff costs relates to the cost of employing staff for the purposes of extending the network This
Includes managenrial and technical staff to the extent that they are directly attnbutable to the improvement of
the network These costs have been included within network assets

The monthly average number of employees, including Directors, during the year was as

follows

2007 2006

Number Number

Networks branch 4,974 4,998

Customer and Energy branch 7,016 6,153

Others 1,045 916

13,035 12,067

2007 2008

COMPANY £m £m

Wages and salaries 80.1 552

Social secunty costs 8.3 71

Pension costs 15 109
Share scheme 04 -

100.3 732

The monthly average number of employees in the Company during the year was as follows

2007 2006

Number Number

Management 314 308
Other staff 1,146 999
1,460 1,307
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10. Employee share offering

On 30 August 2007 the ultimate parent company, Electricité de France SA announced Actions pour Tous
(ACT) 2007, the Free Award Share Plan This plan entitles all persons who, on 30 August 2007, were bound
by an employment contract with EDF Energy or one of it's subsidiaries, a free distnbution of EDF ordinary
shares In accordance with the Rules and Regulations of the plan Each beneficiary was notfied of the
number of shares, the vesting and holding periods applicable to them and had nght of refusal of the plan

Each employee who agreed to take part in the plan 1s guaranteed to receve 10 free shares Over and above
this, employees will receive an additional number of shares proportional to their salary, calculated on the
basis of the actual June 2007 annual salary, excluding any other vanable compensation items such as
bonuses, profit sharing etc  The number of shares any one beneficiary can recewe Is capped at 50 shares

The Award will become final and the beneficiaries will be i1ssued the shares at the end of the vesting period
of 2 years, If, at this date both the Performance and Presence criteria have been fulfiled These criteria are

a) Performance Cntena This 1s based on the EDF group meeting their EBITDA target over the period
2008-2008 The decision as to whether the Performance Criteria has been met will be assessed on the
date of the release of the annual consolidated results of EDF Group for the financial year 2008

b) Presence Crniteria Each beneficiary must be continuously bound by an employment contract with EDF
Energy or one of its subsidianes throughout the vesting penod

After this point the beneficiary 1s required to keep and not transfer the shares for the holding period relevant
to them

The table below shows the movements relating to the share scheme during the year

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January - - - -
Granted during the penecd 2.6 - 03 -
Revaluation (3.1) - (0 4) -
At 31 December, {included within capital
reserves) (0.5) - {0.1) -

The value of the shares granted dunng the period represents the charge in the income statement This is
accounted for at the share price (base price) on date of announcement of the plan being €72 50 or £48 99
The balance of the hability 1s valued at the closing share price at 31 December 2007 of €81 48 or £59 75
The difference represents the amount that has been debited to reserves during the period

11 Investment revenue

2007 2006

- £m £m

Interest on bank deposits 12.3 17 4
Income from investments 6.2 17
Pension scheme interest (note 43) 13.8 270
Finance income recewvable under finance leases 331 249
Other finance income 6.0 24
Total investment revenue 71.4 734
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12 Finance costs
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2007 2006
£m £m
interest on bank loans and overdrafts 100.6 48 9
Interest on bonds 123.8 1346
Interest on other loans 25.6 342
Finance charges payable under finance leases 21.7 220
Unwinding of discount on provisions (note 33) 18.0 66
Total borrowing costs 289.7 246 3
13. Tax on profit on ordinary activities
{(a) Analysis of tax charge m the year
Current tax 2007 2006
£Em Em
UK corporation tax 35.2 985
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 6.5 (90 5)
Total current tax expense 4417 80
Deferred tax (note 34}
2007 2006
£m £m
Current year 66 4 325
Adjustment In respect of previous years (42.2) 176
Total deferred tax charge 24.2 501
Income tax expense reported (n income statement (note 13(b)) 65.9 681
{b) The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the mcome statement as follows
2007 2006
£m £m
Profit before tax and associates 336.9 4208
Tax at the UK Corporation tax rate of 30% (2006 30%) 101.1 126 2
Effect of
Non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income 52 48
Adjustment to pnior-year corporation tax charge 65 (90 5)
Adjustment to prior-year deferred tax charge (42.2) 176
Current year effect of deferred tax rate change (4.7) -
Income tax expense reported in Income statement 659 581
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13 Tax on profit on ordinary activities continued

in the current year a deferred tax credit of £312 3m (2006 charge of £348 7m) has been recognised in
equity which relates to losses ansing on dervative instruments which have been included as cash flow
hedges under IAS 39 This includes £296 9m relating to current year losses on denvative instruments and
£15 4m adjustment to prior year tax charge as detailed below

The Finance Act 2007 announced a reduction in the mainstream corporation tax rate from 30% to 28% from
1 April 2008, and also removed the requirement for balancing adjustments on sale of industrial bulldings
£15 dm has been debited to reserves and £58 5m (included within the £42 2m adjustment to prior year tax
charge) has been credited to the income statement for the year to reflect these changes

14, Disposal group of companies

During the year, as part of a Networks branch strategic review, the Group decided to dispose of the
compantes relating to its PFi street hghting contracts in order to focus its capital expenditure programme on
key activites The assets and habilites of these companies have been re-classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 On 29 February 2008, the sale was completed and the assets and liabilities
assoclated with the disposal group were sold The proceeds were in excess of the net book value and
accordingly no impairment losses have been recognised These companies contributed £0 8m to net income
In 2007 (2006 £1 8m)

The major classes of assets and liabilities included within the operations held for sale are as follows

2007
£m
Property, plant and equipment 02
Long-term receivables 204
Inventory 78
Trade recevables 4.7
Cash 3.9
Total assets in disposal group 37.0
Other habilibes (4.7)
Borrowings (23.9)
Total habilittes in disposal group (28.6)
Net assets of disposal group 8.4
15. Dividends
2007 2006
£m £m
Amounts recognised as distributtons to equity holders n the penod
{note 40)
Interim dividend paid 60.0 -
Final dividend patd 50.0 1050
110.0 1050

The dividend per share in 2007 for the Group and the Company was 4 95p per share (2006 4 72p)
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16. Goodwill

GROUP Em
Cost
At 1 January 2008 1,257 3
Recognised on acquisition of trade 35
At 1 January 2007 1,260 8
Impairment (08)
At 31 December 2007 1,260 0
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2007 1,260.0
At 31 December 2006 1,260 8

COMPANY £m
Cost
At 1 January 2006 -
Recognised on acquisition of trade 08
At 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2007 06
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2007 06
At 31 December 2006 06
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17. Impairment testing of goodwill

2007 2006
Allocation of goodwill to Branches Em £m
Customer and Energy Branch 1,142 2 1,142 2
Networks Branch 117 2 1180
Corporate Branch 06 06
Total goodwili 1,260.0 1,260 8

During the year, impairment testing has been carried out at a cash-generating unit (“CGU") level, based on
value in use, using the Group's five-year medium-term plans for each CGU An estimated growth rate of
3 0% 1s used, which 1s based on current information and industry norms These medium-term plans are
based on pre-tax discounted cash flows, using discount rates of between 8 3% - 10 1% Other assumptions
applied to each CGU are detalled below

Customers and Energy
The imparrment review was based on the five-year medium-term plan and included assumptions about
customer growth numbers, discount rates, ferward electricity and power prices

Networks

The imparrment review was based on the five-year medium-term plan and included assumptions about the
level of premium to be achieved on regulated asset value (RAV), the outcome of the Distnbution Price
Control Review and the discount rate to be apphed An impairment of £0 8m was recognised during the year
to wnte off all the goodwill recognised In connection with a previous acquisition by one of the Company's
subsidiary companies
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18. Other intangible assets

EU Emissions IT Software Total
Trading
GROUP Certificates
Em £m £m

Cost

At 1 January 2006 632 194 5 2577
Additions 158 4 255 183.9
Disposals (63 2) (0 1) (63.3)
At 1 January 2007 158.4 2199 378.3
Additions 1455 118 157.3
Disposals (158 4) {0 2) (158.6)
At 31 December 2007 1455 231.5 377.0
Amortisation
At 1 January 2006 - (83 2) (83 2)
Charge for the year - (21 4) (21 4)
At 1 January 2007 - (104 6) (104 6)
Charge for the year - (23 9) (23.9)
Disposals - 02 0.2
At 31 December 2007 - (128.3) {128.3)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2007 145.5 103 2 248.7

At 31 December 2006 158 4 1153 2737
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EU Emissions IT Software Total
Trading
COMPANY Certificates
£m £m Em

Cost
Cost at 1 January 2006 63.2 142.0 2052
Additions 158 4 31 161.5
Disposals (63 2) {109 2) (172.4)
At 1 January 2007 158.4 359 194.3
Additions 1455 76 153.1
Disposals {158 4) - (158.4)
At 31 December 2007 1455 43.5 188 0
Amortisation
Cost at 1 January 2006 - (76 2) (76.2)
Charge for the year - 47) (4.7)
Disposals - 629 62.9
At 1 January 2007 - {18.0) (18 0)
Charge for the year - (6 2) {6 2)
At 31 December 2007 - {24.2) (24.2)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2007 145.5 19.3 164 8
At 31 December 2006 158 4 1789 1763
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
19. Property, plant and equipment

GROUP Land and Network Generation Motor Equipment  Assets in the
Buildings Assets Assets  Vehicles and fittings course of Total
consiruction

£m £m £m £m £m £m Em
Cost
At 1 January 2006 409 4 598339 1,3533 301 2728 536 8,083 1
Additions 34 4 434 8 - o 133 127 8 610 2
Transfers {12 1) 107 727 14 4 378 (123 5) -
Transfers to assets
held for sale (2 8) - - - - - {2 6)
Transfers from assets
held for sale 41 - - - - . 4.1
Disposals 01 {13 5) (21 2) (47) (08) 32 (36.9)
At 1 January 2007 433.3 6,365 9 1,404 8 397 3231 61.1 8,627.9
Additions 497 585 4 - - 128 163 1 801.0
Transfers 87 250 559 114 178 {118 8) -
Transfers to assets
held within disposal
group - - - (0 2) (0 3) - (0.5)
Disposals (09) (40 2) - {7 5) (4 8) (0 4) (53.8)
At 31 December 2007 490 8 6,9361 1,460.7 434 348 6 950 9,374.6
Accumulated
depreciation
At-1 January 2006 {115 9) {998 0) (299 Q) (54) (2191) - {1,637.4)
Charge for the year (586) {150 7} (84 2) {7 2) (29 1) - (276.8)
Transfers (0 8) - - - - - (0.8)
Transfers to assets
held for sale 05 - - - - - 05
Disposals 0§ 106 212 45 01 - 369
At 1 January 2007 (121.3) (1,138 1) (362 0} {8.1) (2481) - {1,877.6)
Charge for the year (6 0) (166 0) (88 1) (8 1) {28 0) - (296.2)
Transfers 04 (52) (03) - 51 - -
Transfers to assets
held within disposal
group - - - 01 02 - 03
Disposals - 372 03 75 49 - 49.9
At 31 December 2007 {126.9) (1,272.1) {450.1) {8.6) (265.9) - (2,423 6)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2007 3639 56640 1,010 6 34.8 827 95.0 7.251.0

At 31 December 2006 3120 5,227 8 1,042 8 316 750 611 6,750 3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

49. Property, plant and equipment continued

EDF ENERGY PLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2007

The carrying amount of the Group’s generation assets includes an amount of £257 3m (2006 £277 1m) I

respect of assets held under finance leases

COMPANY Land and Equipment  Assels In the
Buildings and fittings course of Total
construction
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2006 268 437 - 70.5
Additions - - 122 122
Transfers (12 Q) 201 (81) -
At 1 January 2007 148 63.8 4.1 827
Additions - - 16 4 154
Transfers (70) 135 {6 5) -
Disposals - (2 8) - (2 8)
At 31 December 2007 7.8 74.5 130 953
Land and Equipment Assets in the
Buildings and fittings course of Total
construction
£m £m £m £m
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2007 (18) (26 1) - (27 9)
Charge for the year (02) 96) - (9 8)
At 1 January 2007 {2 0) {(357) - (37 7)
Charge for the year - (9 5) - (95)
Disposals - (4 4) - (4 4}
At 31 December 2007 {2.0) {49 6) - {5186)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2007 58 249 13.0 43.7
At 31 December 2006 128 281 41 450
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

20. Non-current assets held for sale

EDF ENERGY PLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2007

Non-current assets held for sale related to properties and ther associated fittings which were planned to be
sold and were being actively marketed These properties were considered surplus to requirements and were

sold within the year

GROUP Land and Equipment

Buildings and fittings Total

fm £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2006 174 09 18.3
Transfers from property, plant and equipment 26 - 2.6
Transfers to property, plant and equipment (41) - (4.1)
Disposals (13 3) (09) (14 2}
At 1 January 2007 26 - 2.6
Disposals (2 8) - (2.6)
At 31 December 2007 - - -

Land and Equipment

Bulldings and fittings Total

£m £m £m

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2006 (4 0) (07) (4.7)
Transfers from property, plant and equipment (05) - {0.5)
Transfers to property, plant and equipment 08 - 0.8
Disposals 32 07 3.9
At 1 January 2007 (0 5) - {0 5)
Disposals 05 - 0.5
At 31 December 2007 - - -
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2007 - - -
At 31 December 2006 21 - 21
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
21, Investments in subsidiary undertakings

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

COMPANY Shares Loans Total
£m £m £m
At 1 January 2007 5703 1,845 8 2,416.1
Repayments of loans - (183 9) (183.9)
At 31 December 2007 §70.3 1,661.9 2,232.2
Cetalls on movements in loans are as follows
Balance at
Balance at 1 3
January Decrease December
2007 in loans 2007
£m Em £m
Loans to EDF Energy Networks (SPN) plc 99 8 {99 6) 02
Loans to EDF Energy (Services) Limited 221 (99) 122
Loans to EDF Energy Transport (Services) Limited
12 (0 8) 0.6
Loans to EDF Energy 1 Limited 410 - 410
Loans to EDF Energy (Energy Branch) plc 1710 - 1710
Loans to West Burton Property Limited 3838 - 3838
Loans to EDF Energy Customers plc 1067 - 1057
Loans to EDF Energy Customer Field Services (Metering)
Limited 03 {0 3) -
Loans to CSW Investments 4390 - 439.0
Loans to Deltabrand Limited 499 9 - 499.9
Loans to The Barkantine Heat & Power Company Limited
Loans to Kirkheaton Wind Limited 42 - 42
Leans to High Hedley Limited 08 - 08
Loans to EDF Energy Development plc 10 - 10
Loans to EDF Energy Networks (LPN) plc 25 - 25
735 (73 5) -
1,845.8 {183 9) 1,6619

Accounts of all subsidiary companies are consobdated The principal undertakings at 31 December 2007,
which are incorporated 1n Great Britain and are registered and operate in England and Wales (unless

otherwise stated), are as follows

Name of subsidiary Proportion Proportion Principal
of of voting activity
ownership  power held
interest % %
51° Limited” 100% 100% Telecommunication netwerks
CSW Investments™ 100% 100% Holding company
Ealing Lighting (Finance) Limited* 100% 100% Street highting contractor
Ealing Lighting Lirmited 100% 100% Electrical contracting
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

21. Investments in subsidiary undertakings continued

Name of subsidiary

EDF Energy Customer Field Services (Data)
Limited *

EDF Energy Customer Field Services
(Metering) Limited

EDF Energy (Asset Management) Limited *
EDF Energy {Contract Services) Limited *

EDF Energy {Cottam Power) Limited *

EDF Energy (Energy Branch) pic

EDF Energy {Enterprises} Limited

EDF Energy {London Heat & Power) Limited *

EDF Energy {Metro Holdings) Limited *
EDF Energy {Northern Offshore Wind) Limited

EDF Energy (Powerlink Holdings) Limited *
EDF Energy {Projects) Limited *

EDF Energy (Services) Limited

EDF Energy {South East Generation) Limited *
EDF Energy (South East) plc *

EDF Energy {South Eastern Services) Limited *
EDF Energy {Sutton Bridge Holdings) Limited *

EDF Energy (Sutton Bridge Power } ~
EDF Energy {Transport Services) Limited

EDF Energy (West Burton Power) Limited*
EDF Energy Networks (EPN) plc

EDF Energy Networks (LPN} plc
EDF Energy Networks (SPN) plc *
EDF Energy Networks Limited

Green Electron Limited

High Hedley Hope Wind Limited”

Isington Lighting Limited*

Isington Lighting {Finance) Limited*
Kirkheaton Wind Limited*

Knight Debt Recovery Services Limited
EDF Energy Group ESPS Trustees Limited

Londeon Electricity Share Scheme Trustees
Limited

EDF Energy Customers plc *

EDF Insurance Limited (Guernsey)

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

Proportion Proportion Principal
of of voting activity

ownership  power held
interest % %

100% 100% Meter reading and related

services

100% 100% Meter operations and retated

services

100% 100% Investment company

100% 100% Maintenance of distribution

networks

100% 100% Provision and supply of

electncity generation

100% 100% Investment in electricity

generation

100% 100% Investments in commercial

projects

100% 100% Generation and supply of

electncity and heat

100% 100% Investment company

100% 100% Development of generation

and supply

100% 100% Investment company

100% 100% Investment company

100% 100% Electricity distribution project

100% 100% Holding company

100% 100% Holding company

100% 100% Property management

100% 100% Investment in power

generation company

100% 100% Provision and supply of

electricity generation

100% 100% Provisian and supply of

transport services

100% 100% Power generation

100% 100% Management of distribution

network

100% 100% Management of distribution

network

100% 100% Management of distribution

network

100% 100% Maintenance of distnbution

networks

100% 100% Investment company

100% 100% Renewable power generation

100% 100% Electrical contracting

100% 100% Investment company

75% 75% Renewable power generation

100% 100% Debt collection and tracing

100% 100% Trustees of employee

benefits

100% 100% Trustees of employee share

and benefits funds

100% 100% Electricity retailing

100% 100% Insurance
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EDF ENERGY PLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

21. Investments in subsidiary undertakings continued

Name of subsidiary

London Power SB Limited*

Longfield Insurance Company Limited*
(Isle of Man)
Norfolk Offshore Wind Limited *

Seeb Limited*

EDF Energy Contracting Limited *
SEEBOARD Employment Services Limited*
SEEBOARD Energy Gas Limited”
SEEBOARD Energy Limited*

EDF Energy {Develcpment) plc *
SEEBOARD Highway Lighting No 2 Limited*
SEEBOARD Highway Lighting No 3 Limited™
SEEBOARD Highway Lighting No 4 Limited*
SEEBOARD Highway Services Limited*

SEEBOARD International Limited*
SEEBOARD Metering Limited”
SEEBOARD Natural Gas*

EDF Energy Powerlink Limited”
SEEBCOARD Trading Limited *

Southern Gas Limited”

Sutton Bridge Financing Limited* (Cayman
Islands)

Sutton Bndge Investors *

The Barkantine Heat & Power Company
Limited*
EDF Energy 1 Limited

EDF Energy Homephone Limited
West Burton Property Limited”
Deletepicnic Limited

Dorset Lighting (Finance) Limited*
Dorset Lighting Limited*

Proportion
of
ownership
interest %
100%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
80%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

Proportion
of voting
power held

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
80%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

%

31 DECEMBER 2007

Principal
activity

Investment in power
generation company
Insurance

Development of generation
and supply
Investment company

Electrical contracting
Management company
Gas supply

Energy supply

Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company

Investment company
Investment company
Investment company
Asset management
Investment company
Investment company
Financial activities

Investment 1n power
generation company
Generation and supply of
electricity and heat
Marketing and supply of
glectricity and gas
Telecoms retatling
Power generation
Holding company

Street lighting contractor
Electrical contracting

* Held indirectly
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

22, Interests in associates

2007 2006

£m £m

Cost of nvestment in associates 81.1 41 1
Share of post-acquisition gains net of dividend 647 618
Total investment 145 8 102 9
Provision for impairment (88.2) (50 0)
Carrying value of associates 57.6 529
2007 20006

Aggregated amounts relating to associates £m £m
Total assets 618.9 528 9
Total habilities {561.3) (476 0)
Revenues 137.8 793 4
Loss (31.4) (20 6)

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2007 are as follows

Name of assocciate

Metronet SSL Limited
Metronet BCV Limited
Barking Power Limited
Thames Valley Power Limited

Proportion of
ownership

Place of
incorporation
and operation

Proportion of
voting power

Methed used to
account for

Great Bntain
Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Britain

interest % held % investment
20 0% 20 0% Equity
20 0% 20 0% Equity
18 6% 25% Equity
50 0% 50 0% Equity

All associates are held indirectly

On 18 July 2007, Metronet Raill BCV Limited and Metronet Raill SSL Limited entered PPP administration In
2007, EDF Energy increased its provision from £50 Om to £115 Om relating to the Metronet contracts which
covers the equity and debt nvestments, as well as trading balances £88 2m of this provision has been
included against the value of associates The loss for the year includes £38 2m relating to the impairment
provision ansing when Metronet entered administration The remaining amount of the provision has been
included against specific balances, including provisions, where appropniate Further details retating to
Metronet entering administration are contained within the Directors’ Report

23. Interests in joint ventures

The Group has the following significant interests in joint ventures

Name of joint venture

Power Asset Development Company Limited

Trans4m Limited
SABCO

S0OLVe

MUJV Limited

EDF Energy Renewables Limited

Place of Proportion of  Proportion
incorporation ownership of voting
and operation interest %  power held

%
Great Britain 50 0% 50 0%
Great Britain 25 0% 25 0%
Unmincorporated 50 0% 50 0%
Unincorporated 50 0% 50 0%
Great Britain 49 9% 49 9%
Great Britain 50 0% 50 0%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

23 Interests I1n joint ventures continued

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

The share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the joint ventures which are included in the

consolidated financial statements, via proportionate consoldation, are as follows

2007 2006
£m £m
Current assets 21.3 529
Non-current assets 701 810
91.4 1339
Current habilities (23.6) (141 3)
Non-current labilites (59 5) -
83 (7 4)
Revenue 1116 104 7
Cost of sales {96 8) (104 7)
Administrative expenses 47) (15}
Finance {(costs)/income (4.5) 02
Gain/(loss) before income tax 5.6 (13)
Income tax credit 1.0 06
Net profit/(loss) 6.6 (07

The Group’s share in Transd4m Limited (trading as “Metronet Alllance”) has been accounted for as a joint
venture because there 1s joint control, evidenced by the requirement for unanimous consent of all four
venturers for the strategic and operating decisions of the company

24 Investments

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £fm fm
Loans receivable carrnied at amortised cost
Amounts recewvable from joint ventures 06 20 - -
Amounts receivable under PFI contracts - 126 - -
Amounts receivable from associates - 80 - -
Other receiwvables 01 10 - -
Investment carried at cost
Investment in London & Continental Railways - 25 - 25
Total non current investments 0.7 26 1 - 25
Investment carried at cost
Investment in London & Continental Railways 0.5 - 05 -
Total current investments 0.5 - 0.5 -
1.2 26 1 0.5 25
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
24 Investments continued

Investments include equity investments and loans in other companies where the Group does not exercise
significant influence or control The amounts receivable from joint ventures i1s carried net of a £5 Om provision
for impairment (2006 £mil)

The investment in London & Continental Railways 1s carried at cost because there 1s no active market and its
fair value cannot be rehably measured These shares will be redeemed in 2008 and hence the nvestment
has been re-classified as a current investment in 2007 The decrease in value during the year arose due to
the redemption of some preference shares in 2007

25. Finance lease receivables

The Group 15 involved with several long-term contracts for the construchon of assets which will be
transeferred on completion to third parties These contracts have been accounted for as finance lease
contracts in accordance with IFRIC 4 Future minimum lease receipts under finance leases together with the
present value of the net minimum lease payments are as follows

Net investment in finance

Minimum lease payments leases
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Amounts receivable under finance leases
Within one year 575 892 40.7 47 3
After one year but not more than five
years 276.2 4739 1854 167 8
More than five years 2,8458 5046 4 182.8 164 2
3,179.5 6.5195 408.9 3793
Less Unearned future finance income on
finance leases (2,770.6) (6,140 2) nla n/a
Present value of minimum lease
payments recevable 408.9 3793 408.9 3793
Analysed as
Non-current finance lease receivables
{recoverable after more than 12 months) 40.7 473
Current finance lease receivables
{recoverable after more than 12 months) 368 2 3320
408 9 3783

An average effective rate of return of 8 8% (2006 12 0%) 1s generated by the finance lease debtors

26 Inventories

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Raw materials and consumables 168.7 2338 1355 2093
Work In progress 34.6 419 - -
2033 2757 1355 2093

None of the inventories has any exposure to changes in interest rate in the current or the preceding year
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

27 Trade and other receivables

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2008
£m £m £m £m
Trade receivables (1) 801.7 7331 116.5 234
Allowance for doubtful debts (i) (166.6) {74 2) - (01)
Amounts due under long-term contracts (note
28) 16.7 116 - -
Unbilled revenue 650 8 7038 - -
Amounts owed by other group companies 233.0 2514 674.2 1,770 8
Corporation tax (Group payments) - - 3391 1798
Other debtors 78.5 56 9 12.3 204
Pension retmbursement rights asset (note 43) 57 124 - -
1,6198 1,695 0 1,142.1 1,994 3

(1) The majonty of trade receivables are non-interest beanng and are generally on 14-day terms for
residential customers Interest 1s applied to major accounts when the accounts become overdue For further
information relating to related party recewvables, refer to note 45 Included in the value of other debtors for
the Group, 15 £4 1m relating to value added taxation ("VAT") (2006 £13 7m hability included within trade and
other payables} The VAT receivable and payable 1s remitted to the appropriate tax body on a quarterly
basis The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recewvables approximates their fair
value

Included within the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with a carrying value of £405 7m (2006
£372 6m) which are overdue at the reporting date The average age of these debts 1s 106 days (2006 99
days) The Company has £2 7m of overdue balances {2006 £1 3m) with an average age of 1,027 days
{2006 300 days) Provisions have been established against these balances to the extent that they are not
considered recoverable, and in accordance with the Group’s polcy on bad debt provisioring  See note 44
for further details on bad debt provisions and credit risks

(n) Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m fm
Opening balance 74 2 67 3 0.1 -
Amounts recovered during the year (4 3) (24) - -
Increase/ (decrease) n allowance recognised In
profit or loss 96.7 93 (0.1) 01
Balance at end of year 166 6 74 2 - 01
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

28 Long-term contracts

GROUP
2007 2006
£m £m
Contracts in progress at balance sheet date
Amounts due from contract customers included
in trade and other receivables (note 27) 16.7 116
Amounts due to contract customers included in
other habiities {note 30) (61.3) (51 8)
{44.6) (40 2)
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits
less recognised losses to date 499.7 3919
Less progress billings (544.3) (432 1)
(44.6) (40 2)

There are a number of long-term private finance iniiative ("PFI") and public prnivate parinership ("PPP")
contracts within the Group The Powerlink contract which ends in 2028 1s part of a PFl consortium which
includes the refurtishment of the legacy infrastructure assets for London Underground The Allenby contract
1s a PFI electrical infrastructure contract with the Ministry of Defence, ending in 2041  The Metronet Alliance
contract formed part of the overall Metronet PPP contract with London Underground (see note 22} Inflation
rate nsk arnises from these long-term contracts because revenue streams are generally based on the retail
price index and index of average earnings, but costs generally nse based on the construction price index

Revenue under long-term contracts amounted to £109 5mn 2007, and £160 1m in 2008

There are no such long-term contracts within the Company

29 Cash and cash equivalents

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 118.1 100 9 667 5 -
Short-term deposits 75.7 654 1.9 -
193.8 166 3 669 4 -

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floating rates based on dally bank deposit rates Short-term
deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates The fair value
of cash and cash equivalents 1s £193 8m (2006 £166 3m)

At 31 December 2007, the Group had avallable £687 2m (2006 £460 Om} of undrawn committed borrowing
facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
29. Cash and cash equivalents continued

ECF ENERGY PLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the purpose of the cash flow statement the cash and cash equivalents are

31 DECEMBER 2007

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 118.1 1009 667 5 -
Bank overdrafts - - - (514 4)
Short-term deposits 75.7 65 4 1.9 -
Cash and equivalents 193 8 166 3 669 4 (514 4)

The Group cash balance includes £48 3m (2006 £50 8m) of cash which must be maintained as a minimum
cash balance in some entities, in accordance with contractual cbligations with financial institutons There
were no restrictions in place over the Company's cash balances in 2007 or 2006, and amounts owed, shown

above, are repayable on demand

30 Other habilities

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Trade creditors 9614 B46 6 6457 574 5
Amounts due under long-term contracts (note 28) 61.3 518 - -
Other payables 632.6 632 2 276 362
Deferred income due within one year 53.9 44 5 - -
Interest payable 78.1 766 48 35
Amount owed to intermediate parent companies 62.3 - 62.8 -
Amounts owed to other Group companies - - 268.2 7130
Total other liabilities recoverable within 1 year 1,850.1 16517 1,009.1 1,327 2
Deferred income — non current 1,377.2 1,251 4 - -
Total other llabiiies 3,227.3 29031 1,009 1 1,327 2

For further information regarding related party payabies refer note 45

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms, with the exception of
energy purchases which are usually settled on market terms within 14 days Other payables are non-interest
bearing Deferred income includes the consumer contributions of £1,366 6m (2006 £1,244 3m) towards
distribution network assets which are credited to the income statement over the lives of the distnbution

network assets to which they relate
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

31 Botrrowings

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Current
Short-term borrowing (Iv) 1,768 1 1,2816 1,610.0 1,1853
Bank overdraft - - - 514 4
PADCO loan () 27 58 1 - -
Sutton Bridge bonds due June 2022 (1) 17.2 268 - -
Secuniisation (i} 50.0 340 0 - -
1,838 0 1,706 5 1,610.0 1,709 7
Non-current
€500m 4 375% Eurobond due December 2010 (v) 367.1 336 9 367.1 3369
£200m 8 75% Eurobond due March 2012 216.9 2210 - -
Sutten Bridge bonds due June 2022 (1) 188.1 195 9 - -
£50m Index Linked Bond due June 2023 (v) 575 550 - -
£300m 5 75% Bonds due 2024 {v) 348.9 348 8 - -
£200m 8 5% Eurobond due March 2025 252.8 2559 - -
£300m 5 5% Eurobond due June 2028 (v} 297.0 296 9 - -
£300m 6 125% Bonds due June 2027 (v) 305.3 3056 - -
£150m 3 125% index Linked Bonds due June
2032 (v) 1750 167 2 - -
PADCO loan (i) 516 - -
Other - 159 - -
2,260.2 2,1891 3671 3369
Total borrowings 4,098.2 3,9056 1,9771 20466

All borrowings are denominated In sterling and valued at amortised cost unless otherwise stated With the
exception of the PADCO loan, the Sutton Brnidge bonds and the Secuntisation, the borrowings are

unsecured
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

31. Borrowings continued

U

(m)

()

(v)

The secured bonds which are guaranteed by Sutten Brnidge Power Limited comprise two
tranches of 25-year amortising bonds 1ssued by Sutton Brnidge Financing Limited The first
tranche comprises a remaining principal of £128 2m (2006 £139 3m) at a fixed interest rate of
8625 % The second tranche comprises a remaining principal amount of US$98 6m (2006
$107 2m) at a fixed interest rate of 797% The Group has entered into currency swap
arrangements in order to convert the principal and interest payment on the bonds into sterling for
periods up to matunty, see note 44 The bonds are secured by means of fixed and floating
charges over substantially all the net assets of Sutton Bridge and at all times rank pan passu
and without preference among themselves The Sutton Brnidge bonds mature in June 2022 but
principal repayments commenced from June 2002 Principal and interest payments are made
semi-annually in arrears on the bonds on 30 June and 31 December

The PADCO loan of £54 3m (2006 £58 1m) relates to EDF Energy plc's share of PADCO's
drawn down loan faciities relating to PADCO construction contracts Loan faciities of £105m
and £18m were entered into on 13 August 1998, secured by fixed and floating charges over
PADCQ's assets PADCO has commenced repayment by quarterly instaiments Interest
charged on the loans has been fixed to maturity under swap transaction arrangements at an
interest rate of 6 0% per annum for the £105m facility and at an average of 5 4% for the £18m
faciity This was classified as short term in 2008, because PADCO had received two formal
warnings from Lendon Underground which gave the banks the nght to call for instant repayment
of the bonds Contracts have been re-negotiated and this 1s ne longer the case

The Group has entered into a commercial paper secuntisation programme invalving the sale of
unbilled and billed trade debtors to a trust Interest 1s charged on trade debtars secuntised at a
margin above LIBOR The total facidity available 1s £350m, and amounts are repayable within 12
months of the securitisation of the associated debtor balance

The short-term borrowing includes £1,610 Om which relates to money borrowed under a facility
extended to EDF Energy plc by EDF S A, the ultmate parent company This amount 1s a rolling
facility, which 1s renewed on a monthly basis

These bonds were all 1ssued under the Group's medium-term notes programme In 2004, the
Group consolidated two Medium-term notes programmes inte a €4bn medium term note
programme This programme 1s renewed on an annual basis Currently the Group has
uncommitted lines available under this facility in the region of £1,600 Om

56




EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

32 Derivative financial instruments

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m

Current
Dernvatives that are designated as hedging
instruments carried at fair value.
Foreign currency forward contracts {3 2) (02) {3 2) -
Derivatives that are designated as hedging
instruments in a cash flow hedge’ ;
Commodity purchase contracts 534 (557 1) 53.4 (5657 1)
Interest rate swap contracts - {03) - -
Foreign currency swap contracts - {14) - -
Denvatives at fair value through income
statement
Commodity purchase contracts 225.9 (26 2) 225.9 (26 2)
Total current derivative financial
instruments 2761 (585 2) 2761 (583 3)
Sphtby: . i
Current assets 434.4 2547 434.4 254 7 |
Current habilities {158.3) (838 9) {158 3) (838 0)
Non-current
Derivatives that are designated as hedging
instruments carried at fair value.
Foreign currency forward contracts 7.9 {0 2) 79 -
Denvatives that are designated as hedging
instruments in a cash flow hedge:
Commodity purchase contracts 95.2 (211 9) 95.2 (211 9)
Interest rate swap contracts {2.1) (53) - -
Foreign currency swap contracts {4.7) (30 0} 19.2 {4 0)
Denvatives at fair value through income
statement:
Commodity purchase contracts (8.0) 68 (8 0) 68
Total non-current derivative financial
instruments 88.3 (240 B) 114.3 (209 1)
Spit by’
Non-current assets 211.0 874 209.9 865
Non-current habilities (122.7) (328 0) {95.6) (295 6)
Total denvative financial instruments 364.4 (825 8) 390.4 (792 4)

Further detalls of denvative financial instruments are provided in note 44 The change n farr value of
derivatives classified at fair value through income statement 1s separately disclosed on the face of the
income statement
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33. Provisions for liabilities

The movements in provisions during the current year are as follows

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

GROUP At 1 January Utiised in Released in Arnsing  Unwinding At 31
2007 the year the year durnngthe ofdiscount December
year 2007
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Medway power contract 67 0 (332) - - 112 450
Obligations under EU
emissions 158 2 (158 2} - 1455 - 1455
Teesside power confract 176 {18 3) - - 42 3.5
Insurance 280 (31) - 32 - 28.1
Decommissioning 24 4 - - - 26 27.0
Legal disputes 75 (06) - 12 - 8.1
Onerous lease contracts 4 4 (0 5) - - - 39
Restructuring costs 10 (0 8) - - - 0.2
Rectification costs 37 - - 47 - 8.4
Other costs 14 (03) - - - 11
Dilapidations - - - 03 - 0.3
Metronet - - - 163 - 16.3
3132 (215 0) - 1712 18 0 2874
The provisions have been spht as follows
At 31 December 2007 At 31 December 2006
GROUP Current Non- Total Current Non- Total
current Current
£m Em £m £m £m £Em
Medway power contract 19.2 25.8 450 220 450 670
Obhgations under EU
emissIons 145.5 - 1455 158 2 - 158 2
Teesside power contract 3.5 - 3.5 142 34 176
Insurance 28.1 - 281 280 - 280
Decomimissioning - 27.0 27.0 - 24 4 24 4
Legal disputes 81 - 8.1 75 - 75
Onerous lease contracts 65 34 3.9 18 26 44
Restructuning costs 02 - 0.2 10 - 10
Rectffication costs 27 57 8.4 37 - 37
Other costs 11 - 11 14 - 14
Dilapidations 03 - 03 - - -
Metronet 16.3 - 16.3 - - -
225.5 619 287 4 2378 754 3132
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33. Provisions for habilities continued

COMPANY At 1 January Utilised in the Released in Ansing dunng At 31 December
2007 year the year the year 2007
£m £m Em £m £m

Onerous lease contracts 44 (0 5) - - 39

Obhgations under EU

emIssIons 81 81 - 81 8.1

Restructuring costs 10 (0 8) - - 0.2

Insurance 03 - - - 0.3

Other costs 13 - - - 1.3

Dilapidations - - - 03 03
151 (9 4) - 84 14.1

The provisions have been split as follows

At 31 December 2007 At 31 December 2006

COMPANY Current Non- Total Current Non- Total
Current Current

£m £m £m £m £fm £m
Cnerous lease contracts 05 3.4 3.9 18 26 44
Obligations under EU
emissions 8.1 - 8.1 81 - 81
Restructuring costs 0.2 - 0.2 10 - 10
Insurance 0.3 - 0.3 03 - 03
Other costs 1.3 - 1.3 13 - 13
Dilap:dations 0.3 - 0.3 - - -

10.7 34 14.1 125 26 151

The Teesside power provision arose on the acquisition of the supply business of South Western Electricity
The Medway power contract provisions resulted from the acquisiton of SEEBOARD These prowvisions
represent the difference between the contract price and the estimated market price of energy at the date of
acquisition The discount rate used in armving at the provisions was a nsk adjusted rate The Teesside
provision will unwind by end of 2008, and the Medway provision will unwind by the end of 2010

The provisions for obligations under EU emissions represents the additional certificates required to cover the
Group's carbon emissions In excess of the free allocation of certificates It 1s expected that this provision will
be utiised 1n 2008 because the Group 1s required to provide carbon certificates on an annual basis

The insurance provision 1s based on an assessment of the Group’s known labihties as at 31 December
2007 The provision i1s calculated by the Group’s captive insurers, using various assumptions and Is to cover
the Group's estimated exposure on varnous motor, personal or claims against the networks business The
provision s expected to be utiised within one year based on claim history

The decommissioning provision 1s to provide for the future costs of decommissioning Cottam, West Burton
and Sutton Brnidge power stations This provision has been calculated on a discounted basis with the
discount unwound over the remaining perod to decommissioning, between 2020 and 2030

The legal disputes provision relates to costs expected to be paid out under a number of ongoing legal cases

Any uncertainties within the cases have been considered in the calculation of the provision These cases are
all expected to be mainly settled during 2008
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The provision for onerous lease contracts represents the difference between the projected rental income
from various properties and the amounts payable by the Group for those properties under currently existing
contracts These are expected to be utlised between 2008 and 2014

The restructuring provision covers the costs of severance related to restructunng announced hefore 31
December 2007 The provision 1s expected to be utiised in 2008 Where individual redundancy packages
have not yet been agreed, a provision has been created based on the range offered

The rectification provision covers the additiona! cost of work to be carned out in order to fulfil contractual
obligations for contracts which have been completed This provision will be released between 2008 and
2012

The Metronet provision covers the additional costs likely to be incurred as a result of Metronet entering
administration In total a £115 Om provision has been made relating to the activites of Metronet, this has
been booked directly against associates, trade receivables, work in progress and assoclated tax balances,
with the balance disclosed in provisions Any final adjustment 1s expected to be made in 2008

34. Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabiliies and assets recognised by the Group and movements
thereon dunng the current and prior reporting period

GROUP Retirement Farr value
Accelerated tax benefit of derivative

depreciation obligations  instruments Other Total

£m £m £m Em £m

At 1 January 2006 934 5 (94 5) 1151 {8 2) 946.¢

Charge to income 458 228 (190} 07 501

Credit to equity - - (348 7} - (348.7)

Arising on acquisition - (15) - - {1.5)

Reclassification - - 107 (107) -

At 1 January 2007 980 3 {73.4) (241 9) (18.2) 646.8

Charge to iIncome (52 2) 18 2 299 353 242

Credit to equity - - 3123 - 312.3

At 31 December 2007 921 1 (55.2) 1003 171 983.3

COMPANY Accelerated Retirement  Fair value of
tax benefit dervative

depreciation obligations  instruments Other Total

£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2006 65 {4 6) 1252 59 133.0
Charge o Income (2 8) {0 5) (19 0) (49) (27.2)
Charge to equity - (380 6) - (3506)
At 1 January 2007 3.7 {5.1) (244 4) 10 (244 8)
Credit to income (32) 44 8 44 596
Credit to equity - 2936 - 293.6

Reclassification . 96 (9 6) -
At 31 December 2007 0.5 103.6 {4.2) 108.4

See note 13 for an analysis of the charge in the year and prior year
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34. Deferred tax continued

Certain deferred tax assets and habilities have been offset The following 1s the analysis of the deferred tax
balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes,

GROUP COMPANY

2007 2006 2006 20086

£m £Em £m £m
Deferred tax assets {101 9} {333 5) (6 3) (250 8)
Deferred tax habilities 1,085.2 980 3 1147 58
At 31 December 983.3 646 8 108 4 (244 8)

35. Minornty interest

GROUP

£m

At 1 January 2007 25
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 02
Additions 0.7
At 31 December 2007 3.4

The minonty interest anises from the Group’s holdings in EDF Energy Powerlink Limited and Loendon ESCO
Limited The Group holds 80% of the shares in EDF Energy Powerlink Limited, with the other remaining 20%
being held by Balfour Beatty plc and ABB Investments Limited The Group invested an 81% stake in London
ESCO Limited duning the year with the remaining stake being heid by the Londen Development Agency The
Increase sn minonty interest duning the year was due to EDF Energy Services Limited injecting additional
capital into London ESCO Limited

36 Commitments

Capital and other commitments

At 31 December 2007, the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition of property,
plant and eguipment amounting to £247 8m (2006 £191 Om) The Company had not entered intc any
contractual commitments for the purchase of property, plant and equipment (2006 £nil )

At 31 December 2007, the Group and the Company had contracted to purchase power, gas and other fuel to
the value of £1,158 O0m (2006 £ 1,335 2m)
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Operating lease commitments given

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable cperating leases as at 31 December are as follows

2007 2006
GROUP £m £m
Within one year 24.5 240
After one year but not more than five
years 91.4 8740
More than five years 206.0 194 1
Future lease charges 321.9 3051

2007 2006
COMPANY £m £m
Within one year 137 19
After one year but not more than five
years 46.9 406
More than five years 76 9 68 1
Future lease charges 137.5 1206

Operating lease commitments received

Future mimimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows

2007 2008
GROUP and COMPANY £m £m
Within one year 44 43
After one year but not more than five
years 12.6 118
More than five years 103 105
Future lease charges 27.3 286
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36. Commitments continued

Finance lease commitments

The Group has finance leases for various items of property, plant and machinery Future minimum lease
payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are as

foilows

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
2007 2006 2007 2006
Em Em £m £m
Within cne year 34.2 339 132 1256
After one year but not more than five
years 146 4 1437 733 678
More than five years 3031 3400 2329 2558
483 7 5176 3194 336 2
Less Future finance charges {164 3) (181 4) N/A N/A
Minimum lease payments 31% 4 33562

The Group’s finance lease commitments relate to the Cottam power station under a finance lease with
ancther company within the EDF SA group The term of the lease 1s 13 years and has an effective interest
rate of 6 7% (2006 6 4%) based on LIBOR rates Repayments under the lease are re-calculated quarterly
and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments The lease 1s dencminated In
sterling

Financing commitments

The Group has committed to provide its share of further equity funding and subordinated debt to joint
ventures and associates 1n respect of public finance intiative (“PFI") projects These commitments totalfed
£34 9m at 31 December 2007 (2006 £156 9m)

37 Contingent liabihties

The Company and certamn subsidiary companies have given guarantees in respect of bonds relating to the
Group’s own contracts, and have given guarantees in respect of the Group's share of contractual obligations
of associates and joint ventures

The Group has given a joint and several guarantee of Metronet Allance's obligations under its contracts with
Metronet BCV and SSL  Under the terms of the contract, EDF Energy’'s maximum share of Metronet
Alliance's obligations would be £117 2m A similar guarantee has been given relating to EDF Energy
Contracting Limited's obligations under contract to Metronet BCV and SSL which has also been mited to a
maximum of £44m The likelihood of transferrning benefit under the terms of these guarantees s considered
remote Therefore the overall provision agamnst Metronet of £115 Om 1s considered the maximum exposure

The Group has given letters of credit to vanous associates and joint ventures  The letter of credit granted to
Metronet BCV and SSL was £29 0m (2006 £37 4m) These have been included within the Metronet
provision

The Group has given guarantees in respect of the construction of certain Mational Grid assets relating to the

Group's future construction of power plants A potential liability of £22 3m (2006 £7 7m) could anse as a
result of these guarantees
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38 Share capital

GROUP and COMPANY

Authornised

Ordinary shares of £0 5833 each
Ordinary shares of £0 50 each

Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £0 5833 each

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007

2007 2006 2007 2006

Number Number £m £m
2,228,713,439 2,228,713,439 1,300.0 1,3000
300,000,002 300,000,002 150.0 1500
2007 2006 2007 2008

Number Number £m £m
2,222,739,164 2,222,739,164 1,296 6 1,296 6

The Company has one class of ordinary share in 1ssue which carnes no nght to fixed income

39 Capital reserves

Share Capital Redemption
GROUP premium contribution reserve Total
£m £m Em £m
At 1 January 2006 139 108 110 355
At 31 December 2006 139 1086 110 35.5
Contribution anising on ACT2007 - (G 5) - (0.5)
At 31 December 2007 139 101 11.0 35.0
Share Capital Redemption
COMPANY premium contribution reserve Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2006 139 21 110 27.0
At 31 December 2006 138 21 110 27.0
Contribution arising on ACT2007 - (0 1) - {0.1)
At 31 December 2007 139 20 110 26.9

The capital contribution represented the costs incurred in providing the favourable terms to employees In
respect of shares in EDF as part of the imitial pubhc offering in 20085, see note 10 The change n the capital
contribution during the year relates to the ACT2007 share scheme
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GROUP COMPANY

£m £m

At 1 January 2006 630.8 94.6
Net profit for the year 3419 1057
Equity dwidends paid (note 15) (105 0) (105 0}
At 1 January 2007 B67 7 953
Profit for the year 2394 122 1
Equity dividends paid (note 15) (110 0) (110 0)
At 31 December 2007 997.1 107 4

41. Hedging reserve
GROUP COMPANY

£m £m

At 1 January 2006 2596 2898
Net losses on tems in cash flow hedge {1,153 4) (1,168 8)
Deferred taxation on net losses in cash flow hedge 348 7 3506
At 1 January 2007 {545.1) (528.4)
Net gains on items In cash flow hedge 1,057 9 1,046 0
Deferred taxation on net gains in cash flow hedge (312 3} (293 6)
At 31 December 2007 200.5 2240

The hedging reserve represents the commodity price and foreign exchange movements on hedged contracts

that are classified as cash flow hedges

The matunty analysis of the amounts included within the hedging reserve i1s as follows

GROUP 31 December 31 December
2007 2006
£Em £m
Less than one year 194.8 (540 1)
Between one to five years 500 (223 6)
More than five years (4.7} (15 0)
Total gains/{losses) on hedged derivatives 2801 (778 7)
Deferred taxation (79.6) 23386
Total 2005 (545 1)
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41. Hedging reserve continued
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COMPANY 31 December 31 December
2007 2006
£m £m
Less than one year 193.8 (540 2)
Between one to five years 97.3 (214 7)
Total gains/({losses) on hedged derivatives 291.1 (754 9)
Deferred taxation {67.1) 2265
Total 224.0 (528 4)
42, Notes to the cash-flow statement
GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m Em £m
Profit before taxation 3369 4208 512 547
Adjustments for
(Gan)/Loss on derivatives (103.9) 629 {103.9) 629
Depreciation 296.2 276 8 9.5 98
Other losses (2.3) (34) {0.7) {0 6)
Amortisation of intangible assets 23.9 214 6.2 47
Finance cost 232.3 199 8 (28.3) 62
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (8.9) (227) {8.2) (20 1)
(Decrease) In provisions {43.7) (48 2) {(10) 54)
(Decrease)/increase in post-employment benefits (0.2) (182) 2.3 03
Impairment of goodwill 0.8 - - -
IFRS 2 share costs 26 - 0.3 -
Amortisation of customer contributions (41.3) (37 4) - -
Losses on Metronet 25.5 - - -
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 7179 8519 (72.6) 1125
Decrease/(increase) in inventones 473 (127 4 73.8 (104 8)
(Increase)/decrease In recevables (74) (3242) 1,011.9 (120886)
Increase/{decrease) In payables 2697 2829 {306.9) 284 3
Cash generated by/(used in) operations 1,027.5 683 2 706 2 {814 6)
Pension deficit payment (47.9) (48 8) (3 0) {2 6)
Income taxes {paid)/receved {(112.3) 66 (29.1) 87
Net cash from/{used in) operating activities 867.3 6412 6741 (908 5)
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The principal pension schemes of EDF Energy plc are the EDF Energy Pension Scheme (EEPS) and the
EDF Energy Group of the Electricity Supply Pension Scheme (ESPS) Both of these schemes are defined
benefit schemes On 1 September 2007 the EDF Energy Group of the ESPS was created by the merger of
the Company's two ESPS Groups, the London Electricity Group of the ESPS and the SEEBOARD Group of
the ESPS

The London Electricity group and SEEBOARD group of the ESPS closed to new employees in April 1994
and July 1995 respectively New employees were offered membership of the following schemes the
SEEBOARD final Salary Pension Plan, the London Electricity 1994 Retirement Plan (LERP}, the 24seven
Group Personal Pension Plan {24seven GPFP), and the SEEBOARD Pension Investment Plan The first of
these schemes was a defined benefit scheme whilst all the others are defined contrnibution schemes The
Group closed its non-ESPS pension arrangements with effect from 29 February 2004 A new scheme, the
EDF Energy Pension Scheme, a final salary arrangement, replaced these for future service from 1 March
2004 A special contribution of £2 Om was made to the EDF Energy Pension Scheme at inception, and the
regular ongoing employer's contribution has been assessed as 10% of pensionable pay This contrnibution
rate wili be reviewed as a result of future actuanal valuations

The majority of employees of EDF Energy Powerlink Limited are members of the LRT Pension Fund which is
a defined benefit scheme and 1s operated by Transport for Lendon (“TfL") The TFL pension scheme 1s a
final salary scheme for eligible employees of Transport for London and its operating businesses which
include London Underground EDF Energy Powerlink Limited contributes to the TfL scheme for those
employees who were transferred to EDF Energy Powerlink Limited under the Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment) Regulations, (“TUPE"}) The TfL pension scheme 15 a muitti-employer scheme n
which the assets and liabilities relative to each participating employer are separately identfiable
Accordingly, the following disclosures relate only to the section of the scheme attnibutable to EDF Energy
Powerlink Lirmited

Included in the Group's trade receivables 1s an amount which represents the reimbursement of the TiL
pension hability This anses through the contractual obhgation that London Underground Limited has with
EDF Energy Powerlink Limited to reimburse any payments that are required of Powerlink to the scheme to
fund a scheme deficit that exceed a set annual contnibution of 16 2% of the gross annual salanes of the EDF
Energy Powerlink employees who are members of the scheme

The latest full actuanal valuations of the EDF Energy Group of the ESPS and EEPS were carned out by
Hewitt Bacon & Woodrow, consulting actuanes, as at 31 March 2007 The valuation was agreed on 25
January 2008 The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and
past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method The results of the latest full
actuanal valuation as at 31 March 2006 of the TfL pension scheme, being carnied out by Watson Wyatt, were
used to determine the habihty at 31 December 2007 and 2006

The principal financial assumptions used to calculate ESPS and EEPS liabilities under |AS 19 were

31 December 31 December

2007 2008

% p.a %pa

Discount rate 6.0 52

Inflation assumphon 3.3 31

Rate of increase in salaries

- ESPS 5.3 41

- EEPS 4.8 41
Rate of increase of pensions increases

- full retail price indexation (“RPI”) 3.3 31

- RPI up to 5% {EEPS — service to 31 March 20086) 3.3 31

- RPl up to 2 5% (EEPS - service frorn 31 March 2006) 23 23
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The table below shows details of assumptions around mortalty rates used to calculate the IAS19 ESPS
habihties

31 December 31 December

2007 2006

years years

Life expectancy for current future male pensioner aged 60 26.9 253
Life expectancy for current future female pensioner aged 60 30.3 269
Life expectancy for current future male pensioner aged 40 29.8 261
Life expectancy for current future female pensioner aged 40 31.6 276

These assumptions are governed by IAS 19 and do not reflect the assumptions used by the independent
actuary in the tnennmiat valuation as at 31 March 2007, which determined the Group's contribution rate for
future years

The expected return on assets are set based on advice given by the Group's actuares and reflect the market
expectations of the long-term rate of return of assets at the balance sheet date with gilts used as a
benchmark

The prnncipal financial assumptions used to calculate the TfL liability under IAS 19 were as follows,

31 December 31 December

2007 2006

% p.a. %pa

Discount rate 5.9 51
Inflation assumption 31 31
- Rate of increase in salanes 4.6 46
Rate of increase of pensions increases RPI 3.1 31

These assumptions are governed by IAS 19, and do not reflect the assumptions used by the independent
actuary in the tnennial valuation as at 31 March 2006, which determined the Powerlink contribution rate for
future years

When an individual ceases to be an active member of the EDF section of the TfL pension scheme, the
obligation to provide the pension benefits 15 transferred from the EDF section of the scheme, to a public
sector section of the scheme At the same time, there Is an associated transfer of assets from the EDF
section to the public sector section The defined benefit obligations of the EDF section of the TfL pension
scheme have been measured under IAS 19 using the assumptions in the above table for the period prior to
the transfer of obligations, and the actual assumptions used to determine the assets transferred at the point
of the transfer of obligations
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The amount recognised in the balance sheet in respect of the Group’s defined benefit retirement benefit plan

is as follows

GROUP ESPS EEPS TfL Total Total

2007 2007 2007 2007 2006

£m £m Em £m Em
Present value of defined benefit obligations (2,705 9) (143 1) (343) (2,883.3) (2,7654)
Fair value of scheme assets 2,460 4 132 0 349 2,627.3 24378
({Deficit) / surplus in scheme {245 5) (11 1) 06 {256 0) (327 6)
Unrecognised actuana! losses / (gains) 689 (90) (6 3) 53.6 704
Liability recognised in the balance sheet {176 6) (20 1) (57) {202.4) (257 2)

This amount Is presented in pension liabiites The TfL amount is recoverable from LUL and 1s shown n note
27

The Group has an employee benefits reimbursement right asset connected to the TfL pension scheme This
anses through the contractual oblgation that London Underground Limited has with the EDF Energy
Powerlink Limited to reimburse any payments that are required of Powerlink by the scheme that exceed a set
annual contnibution of 16 2% of the gross annual salanes of the EDF Energy Powerlink employees who are
members of the scheme

Amounts recognised in expenses In respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows

ESPS EEPS TfL Total Total
GROUP 2007 2007 2007 2007 2008
£m £m £m £m £m
Current service cost 331 231 18 580 590
Interest cost 1350 50 22 142 2 122 4
Expected return on scheme assets (149 0) {50) (20) (156 0) (149 0)
Actuarial losses - - - - 10
Commutation credit arising on change in
pension scheme rules - - - - (2 0)
Changes ansing on curtallments/settlements 10 - - 10 25
Pension levy - - - - {0 2)
Total operating cost 201 231 20 45 2 267

Of the charge for the year £59 Om (2006 - £53 3m)} has been included in personnel costs and an income of
£13 8m (2006 - £26 6m) has been included in interest The movement in the pension deficit during the year
was less than the 10% cornidor and has not been recognised in the income statement The amount of the
unrecognised l0ss in 2007 was £53 6 (2006 £70 4m)

The costs of the TfL penston have all been recharged to London Underground Limited through the pension
reimbursement nghts asset (see note 27) and hence have no net impact on the income statement
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Movements in the present value of defined obhgations in the current period were as follows

ESPS EEPS TiL Total Total
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2,6398 820 4386 2,765.4 26727
Service cost 331 231 18 58.0 590
Changes ansing on curtaiiments/settlements 10 - - 10 25
Interest cost 1360 50 22 142.2 122 4
Actuanal loss / (gain) 70 (8 0) (10 3) (11.3) (60)
Obhgation on transfers In - - - - (30)
Commutation credit ansing on change in - - -
pension scheme rules - (20)
Bulk transfers in ’ - 330 - 330 180
Pensicn Levy - - - - (02)
Benefits paid {110 Q) 80 (30) (105.0) (910)
At 31 December 27059 143 1 343 2,883 3 2,7654
Movements In the present value of farr value of scheme assets in the current period were as follows
ESPS EEPS TiL Total Total
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 23420 690 268 2,437.8 2,242 8
Expected return on scheme assets 1490 50 20 156.0 149 0
Actuanal gains 40 10 05 55 252
Contrnibutions by employer 75 4 160 86 100.0 938
Bulk transfers in - 330 - 33.0 180
Benefits paid (110 0) 80 (30) (105.0) (91 0)
At 31 December 2,460 4 1320 349 2,627.3 2,437 8

The analysis of the scheme assets and the expected rate of return at the batance sheet date were as follows

Expected return

Fair value of assets

ESPS ESPS

EEPS TfL EEPS TFL ESPS EEPS TfL Total

2007 2007 2006 2006 2007 2007 2007 2006

Yo % % % £m £m £m £m
Gilts - fixed 4.6 - 45 - 602.0 - - 68430
- index linked 45 - 45 - 3210 - - 2920
Equities 8.2 8.3 82 82 1,114 4 740 198 1,186 5
Property 72 - 72 - 57.0 - - 64 0
Corporate bonds 54 5.0 50 47 234.0 41.0 125 2039
Cash 54 - 52 - 132,0 170 - 460
Other - 4.4 - 46 - - 2.6 24
2,460 4 132.0 34.9 24378
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The history of experience adjustments is as follows

31 DECEMBER 2007

ESPS EEPS TfL Total Total Total Total
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006 2005 2004
Em £Em £m £m £m Em £m
Present value of defined
benefit obhigations (2,705 S} {143 1) (343} (2,883.3) (2,7654) (2,6315) (2,3030)
Farr value of scheme
assets 24604 1320 349 2,627.3 24378 22200 1,8750
Deficit In the scheme {245 5) (111N 06 (256 0) (327 6) (411 5) (428 0)
Expenence adjustments
on scheme habilities {121 0) - {09 (121 9) (6 0) (238 0) (125 0}
Percentage of scheme
habilities (%) 4 5% - 2 6% 4.2% (0 2%) 90% 54%
Expenence adjustments
on scheme assets 40 10 05 55 252 2220 420
Percentage of scheme
assets (%) 02% 0 8% 14% 0.2% 10% 10 0% 22%

The estimated amounts of contributions expected to be paid to the scheme durning the current financial year is

£84 Om

In addition to the pension provision recognised, there 15 an additional amount of £52m (2006 £5 4m)
included within other liabiities {note 30) which relates to the unfunded pension scheme amounts

Pension disclosures relating to the Company are as follows

ESPS EEPS Total Total

2007 2007 2007 2006

£m £m £m £m

Present value of defined benefit obligations (141 2) (45 9) (187 1) (164 2)
Fair value of scheme assets 128 0 44 8 172.8 1452
Deficit In scheme {13 2) (i1 (14 3) (19 0)
Unrecognised actuarnial losses/{(gains) 10 (2 5) (1.5) 19
Liability recognised in the balance sheet {12 2) {3 6) (157) (17 1)

This amount 1s presented in non-current liabilibies
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Amounts recognised in expenses in respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows

ESPS EEPS Total Total

2007 2007 2007 2006

£m £m £m £m

Current service cost 57 51 108 91
Interest cost 69 19 88 70
Expected return on scheme assets (7 B) (20) (9.5) (8 2)
Actuanal losses - - - 10
Shortfall in respect of transfers in - - - (15)
Changes arising on curtalments/settlements - - - 24

Commutation credit ansing on change in

pension scheme rules - - - {10}
Total operating cost 51 50 101 88

Of the charge for the year £10 8m (2006 £7 6m) has been included in personnel costs and an income of

£0 7m (2006 £1 2m) has been included in interest

Movements in the present value of defined obligations in the current period were as follows

ESPS EEPS Total Total
2007 2007 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 1338 304 164.2 151 3
Service cost 57 51 10.8 91
Interest cost 69 19 8.8 70
Actuanal gains and losses 04 (30) (2.6) (4 2)
Cbligation on transfers in - - - (0 5)
Bulk transfers in - 85 8.5 21
Benefits (received)/paid (56) 30 {2.6) (20)
Changes ansing on curtalments/settlements - - - 24
Commutation credit ansing on change in
pension scheme rules - - - (10)
At 31 December 1412 459 187 1 164 2
Movements in the present value of fair value of scheme assets in the current period were as follows
ESPS EEPS Total Total
2007 2007 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 118 2 270 145 2 123 4
Expected return on scheme assets 75 20 95 82
Actuarial gains 02 04 06 15
Bulk transfers in - 85 85 21
Contnbutions by employer 46 39 8.5 94
Benefits (recewved)/paid (58) 30 (2.6) 20
Deficit payments 31 - 31 26
At 31 December 1280 448 172 8 1452
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43 Retirement benefit schemes continued

The analysis of the scheme assets and the expected rate of return at the balance sheet date was as follows

Expected return Fair value of assets
2007 20086 ESPS EEPS
% % 2007 2007 2006
£m £m £m

Gilts - fixed 4.6 45 31.3 - 325
- index hnked 4.5 45 16.7 - 147
Equities 8.2 82 58.0 23.6 710
Property 7.2 72 30 - 33
Corporate bonds 54 50 12 2 15.0 214
Cash 5.4 52 68 6.2 23

128.0 44.3 1452

The history of expenence adiustments 1s as follows

ESPS EEPS Total Total

2007 2007 2007 2006

£m Em £m £m

Present value of defined benefit obligations (141 2} (45 9) (187.1) (164 2)

Fair value of scheme assets 1280 44 8 172.8 145 2
Deficit in the scheme (13 2} (11) (14.3) (19 0)
Expenence adjustments on scheme liabilities (6 9) - (2 6) (42)
Percentage of scheme habihties (%) 49% . - 1.4% 26%

Expenence adjustments on scheme assets 02 04 0.6 15
Percentage of scheme assets (%) 02% 0 9% 0.3% 10%

The estimated amounts of contributions expected to be paid to the scheme duning the current financial year is
£13 0m

In addition to the pension provision recognised, there 1s an addiional amount of £52m (2006 £5 4m)
included within other llabiities (note 30} which relates to the unfunded pension scheme amounts
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
44. Financial instruments

The Group has entered into a variety of financial instruments to mitigate its exposure to commodity price,
interest rate, foreign currency and credit rate nsk Financiat instruments are disclosed gross as derivative
and other financial instruments, obligations under finance leases and interest-bearing hiabilities on the Group
balance sheet Commodity derivative contracts include contracts related to the purchase of power, coal, gas,
gas oll, fuel oll and EU carbon emissions certificates

A financial instrument 1s defined in I1AS 32 as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial hability or equity instrument of another entity

The Group's nsk management objectives and policies are detailled below They can be splt into two main
areas, competitive nsk and the nisks ansing as a result of the Group’s use of financial instruments A
discussion of the risks together with a summary of the Group's approach to managing those nsks 1s as
follows The accounting basis for dealing with these nisks 1s discussed In the accounting policy section below
The accounting treatment for financial instruments entered into as a result of these policies 1s detailed in note
2

The table below shows the carrying value of Group and Company financial instruments by category

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006

£m £m Em £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 193 8 166 3 669 4 -
Derwvative instruments 645.4 3421 644.3 3421
Held to matunty investments 1.2 26 1 0.5 25
Loans and receivables 1,741.4 1,712 3 1,129.8 1,874 0
Financial habilities
Dernvative instruments (281 0) {1,167 9) {253.9) (1,133 86)
Borrowings at amortised cost (5,894 4) {5,549 9) {2,986.2) (3,373 8)

Loans and recewvables include trade and other receivables and current tax recevables, less any provision for
impairment less other debiors

a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital through focusing on its net debt which compnses borrowings inciuding
finance lease obligations and accrued interest, cash and cash equivalents (note 29) and dervative liabihties
Given that the Group 15 a 100%-owned subsidiary, any changes in capital structure are generally achieved
via additional borrowings from its ultimate parent company

The Group 1s not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements

There have been no changes In the capital structure strategy since 2006
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44 Fmnancial instruments continued
b) Margin risk management

Margin price rnisk anses from the necessity to effectively forecast customer demand for gas, coal and
electricity, and to adequately procure the various commodities at a price competitive enough to allow a
favourable tanff proposition for our customers Due to the vertically-integrated nature of the Group the
electricity procured from the generation business provides a natural hedge for the electricity demand from
the retail business Any residual exposure to movements in the pnice of electricity, gas or coal 1s mitigated by
entering nto contracts and hedging options on the forward markets Risk management 1s monitored through
sensitvity analysis and value at nsk limits per commodity and across commodity for the whole of EDF
Energy consistently with its Group rnisks mandate

At a Group and a Company level, margin nsk exposure Is measured looking at sensitivity analysis Under
IAS 39, at the reporting date, if the purchase pnce of commodities had been 10% higher (10% being
management’s estimate of a reasonable, possible change), and all other variables remamned constant, then
the Group's profit for the year would have been £43 8m higher (2006 £25 3m) and hedging reserves would
have been £270 6m higher (2006 £232 9m), as a result of the changes in trade valuation There have been
no changes in the method of preparing the sensitvity analysis since 2006

¢) Interest rate risk management

The Group’'s exposure to interest rate fluctuations on its borrowings and deposits 1s managed principaily
through the use of fixed rate debt instruments and swap agreements The Group’s policy 1s to use derivatives
to reduce exposure to short-term interest rates and not for speculative purposes

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the
reporting date, assuming that the rate change took effect at the start of the reporting penod and remained in
place for the fuli period, and assuming the closing borrowing position was in place throughout the year
There have been no changes In the method of preparing the sensitivity analysis since 2006

If the interest rate had been 25 basis points higher at the reporting date, and on the basis of the assumptions
outlined above, then the Group's profit for the year would have been £6 Om lower (2006 £5 3m)

If the interest rate had been 25 basis points higher at the reporting date, and on the basis of the assumptions
outlined above, then the Company’s profit for the year would have been £4 2m lower (2006 £3 Om lower)

Interest rate profile

The interest rate profile of interest-bearng loans and borrowings, subsequent to the effect of interest rate
swaps, was as follows

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Floating rate borrowings 1,876 6 1,843 8 1,610.0 1,709 7
Fixed rate borrowings 2,2216 2,0618 3671 3369
Total borrowings i 4,098.2 39056 1,977.1 2,046 6
Floating rate finance lease obligations 319.5 3361 - -
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44. Financial instruments continued

The weighted average interest rates for all borrowings and finance lease obhgations was as follows

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Weighted average fixed interest rate % 6.5% 6 3% 5.2% 52%
Weighted average floating interest rate % 6 3% 55% 6.2% 55%

At 31 December 2007, the Group had four interest rate swaps {2006 four} The farr value of the interest rate
swaps outstanding at 31 December 2007 was a hability of £2 Om (2008 a liability of £5 5m) The Company
had no interest rate swaps in 2007 (2006 none)

d) Foreign currency risk management

The Group's present exposure to foreign currency nsk 1s imited to the currency exposure on the service of
interest and capital on US dollar and Euro-denominated debt, and the purchase of energy and EU emissions
certificates The Group policy 18 to hedge/fix known currency exposures as they arnse The US Dollar and
Euro currency swap agreements fix the Sterling equivalent that will be required to service the Interest and
capital repayments of foreign currency debt instruments These are accounted for as cash fiow hedges The
Group enters into forward currency purchase contracts to fix the Sterling pnce for future foreign currency
denominated transactions These are accounted for as far value hedges There was a net gain on foreign
currency hedging instruments of £4 7m (2006 loss of £37 3m), offsetting a net loss on the hedged nsk of
£4 7m (2006 gain of £37 3m)

At the balance sheet date, the following foreign currency contracts were outstanding

GROUP and COMPANY Average exchange Fair value
rate

2007 2006 2007 2006

rate rate Em £m

Fair value hedge

Buy US Dollars < 1year 1938 1875 (208) 107
2-5 years 1943 1862 (3.5) 100
Sell US Dollars < 1year 1.961 1852 86 (257)
2-5 years 1.950 1870 11 (217)
Buy Euros < 1year 1.424 1431 1565 (81)
2-5 years 1.408 1418 411 (114)
Sell Euros < lyear 1.434 1459 {6.4) 23
2-58 years 1.420 1431 (30.8) 62

Cash flow hedge

Buy US Dollars < 1year 1502 1 496 {3.5) (37)
2-5 years 1 506 1506 (20.4) (237)
Buy Euros < lyear 1213 1203 0.7 (01
2-5 years 1.419 1410 185 (39)
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If the exchange rate had been 5% lower at the reporting date, there would have been no impact on the
Group or Company profit for the year because every foreign currency denominated purchase 15 offset by a
forward foreign exchange contract which locks in the price There have been no changes in the method of
preparing the sensitivity analysis since 2006

e) Credit risk management

The Group's credit risk ts pnmanly attributable to its trade receivables and amounts recoverable under long
term contracts The credit nsk on liguid funds and dervative financral instruments 1s limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies For
commercial customers with poor credit ratings, the Group on occasion will receive secunty deposits which
can be used, in the event of default by the customer The Group holds a seres of medium term, In the
money, coal supply contracts with UK Coal Mining Ltd (UK Coal) UK Coal 1s the largest indigenous coal
producer mining the fast few remaining deep shaft mines Given the cyclical and capital intensive nature of
their business, coal mining compantes are rarely viewed as good credit nsks and they very rarely provide any
form of credit support to therr off-takers However, although UK Coal’s coal production 1s dimimishing, it has
benefited from the surge in underlying coal prices and the company’'s valuation has increased given the
significant revaluatron of UK Coal's land and property assets EDF Energy's credit nsk i1s also further
mitigated by the presence of a Matenal Adverse Change clause in its contract which provides for credit
support should UK Coal's net asset position fall to a below a specified tngger level

The Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk, with exposure spread over a large number of
external counterparties and customers

Due to the nature of the Group's trading with other EDF Group companies in Europe, there are large trading
balances with other Group companies, however these are not considered to be a nsk because of parent
company financial support

Trade recevables are recognised and carned at ongnal invoice amount fess a provision for any uncollectible
amounts Provision 1s made when there I1s objective evidence that the group may not be able to collect the
trade receivable Depending on the nature of the receivable, the risk associated with doubtful receivables 1s
assessed Individually or by expenence-based statistical methods This prowvision Increases as trade
receivable balances age and i1s calculated based on the analysis of past collections Balances are written off
when recoverability 15 assessed as being remote The assessment considers the age of debt balances and
takes account of the credit-worthiness of some customers and considers whether they remam onhgoing
customers Money recovered relating to balances previously wntten off are credited to the income statement
on receipt

The maximum credit nsk exposure 1s denved from the carrying value of financial assets in the financial
statements, with the exception of credit nsk ansing from the provision of support and guarantees as detailed
in the table below

GROUP Maximum credit risk
2007 2006
£m £m
Guarantee provided by subsidiary relating to performance of contractual , 51 08
obhgations
Guarantee provided by joint venture relating to tax obligations 0.5 05
Guarantee relating to tax obhigations 3.9 39
COMPANY Maximum credit nsk
2007 2006
£m £m
Guarantee relating to tax obligations 3.9 39
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1) Liquidity risk management
Liquidity nisk 1s the nsk that the Group 1s unable to meet its obligations as they fall due because it has

inadequate funding of 1s unable to liquidate its assets The Group manages liquidity nsk by preparing cash
flow forecasts and by ensuring it has sufficient funding to meet its forecast cash demands

The tables below detall the contracted matunty for all non-denvative financial liabilibes, based on
undiscounted contractual maturities

GROUP
At 31 December 2007
0-30 30-90 3-6 6-12 1-2yrs  2-5yrs >5yrs  Total
days days months months
Obligations under - {8 5) (85) 171 (363) (1101 (3031) (483 6)
finance lease
Borrowings (1,884 0) (61 1) (65 0) (80 8) (1668) (5758) (3,5518) (6,394 3)
Other labibties (1,267 7) (337 8) (116 6) (119 8) (453) (1265} (1,213 6) (3,227 3)
Derivative and other
financial instruments (801 7) (716 1) (680 1) (1,2273) (1,9667) (861 3) - (6,253.2)
GROUP
At 31 December 2006
0-30 30-90 3-6 8-12 1-2 yrs 2-5yrs  >5yrs  Total

days days months months

Obhgations under

finance lease - 92y (95) (197) {34 2) (1095) (3400) (522.1)
Borrowings {1,375 0} (609) (64 9) (434 5) (162 7) (945 0) (3,274 3)(6,317.3)
Other habilities (1,15086) (2703) (90 7) (140 5) (45 2) (122 2) (1,083 6)(2,903.1)
Derwvative and other
financial instruments (6125) (699 1) (5795} (1,1873) (1,776 9) (1,0466) - (5,901.9)
COMPANY
At 31 December 2007
0-30 30-20 3-6 6-12 1-2yrs 2-5yrs  >5yrs Total
days days months months
Borrowings (1,722'7) - (90) (90) (18 0) (385 1) -(2,143.8)
Other habiltties (987 1) {2 5) 47) (22) - - - {996.5)
Dervative and other
financial instruments (801 7) (716 1) (680 1) (1.2273) (1,9667) (8613) - (6,253.2)
COMPANY
At 31 December 2006
0-30 days 30-90 3-6 6-12 1-2yrs 2-5yrs >5yrs  Total
days months months
Borrowings (1,715 3) - {9 0) (90) (180} (354 9) -(2,106.2)
Other habiities (1,3053) (154) {4 3) (2 2) - - -(1,327 2)

Derivative and cther
financial instruments {812 5) (699 1) (579 5) (1,187 3) (1,776 9) (1,046 B) - (5,901.9)

78




EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2007
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
g) Fair values of assets and liabilities

Except as detailed in the table below, the Directors consider that the carrying amount of the financial assets
and financial labihties approximates far value

GROUP Carrying Amount Fair value
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m

Fimancial habilities

Borrowings at amortised cost {5,894.4) {5,549 9} {(6,169.6) (5708 5)
COMPANY Carrying Amount Fair value

2007 2006 2007 2005

£m £m £m £m

Financial habilities

Borrowings at amortised cost (2,986.2) (3,373 8) (2,964 4} (3,385 6)

45 Related parties

The foliowing table provides the total amount of transactions which have been entered into with related
parties for the refevant financiat year

Interest
Interest received Amounts Amounts
Sales to Purchases paidto from owed by owedto
GROUP related fromrelated related related related related
parties  parties parties parties parties parties
£m £m £m Em £m £m
Associates 2007 - {60 6) - - 21 -
2006 971 {85 5) - - 240 (30 8)
Joint ventures 2007 285 - - 1.7 116 -
2006 - - - - 20 -
Transactions with other EDF
SA group companies 2007 151 (1,098.6) (79.7) 17 216 8 (2,078.6)
2006 - (8149) (26) - 102 4 (1,429 0)
Finance lease commitments
with other EDF SA group
companies 2007 - - (21.7) - - {(319.4)
2006 - - (22 0) - - {336 1)

Detalls of transactions with the pension scheme are disclosed i note 43
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45 Related parties continued

EDF Energy pic trades with other group companies which are part of the Electricité de France SA group

COMPANY
Interest Interest Amounts Amounts
Salesto Purchases paidto owed by owedby owedto
related from related related related  related related
parties parties parties parties  parties parties
Em £m Em £m £m £m
Transactions with other
EDF SA group
companies
2007 15.1 {1,098 6) (79.7) 17 216.8 (2,078.6)
2006 - (793 5) (2 6) - 102 3 (1,414 0)
Other EDF Energy plc
group companies
2007 3,7628 (452 8) (72.0) 255 674.2 (268 2)
2006 3,9918 (573 0) (69 7) 251 17708 (713 Q)

Sales and purchases from related parties are made at normal market prices Outstanding balances at year
end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash There have been no guarantees provided or recewved for
any related party recewvables For the year end the company has not raised any provision for doubtful debts
relating to amounts owed by related parties (2006 - £ml) This assessment 1s undertaken each financial year
through examining the financial position of the related party and the market value In which the related party
operates

Loans from related parties

2007 2006
£m £m
Loans from EDF International 1,610.0 1,190 0

Amounts repayable to EDF International carry interest of 6 158% (2006 5 25%) per annum charged on the
outstanding loan balances and are repayable within one month (see note 44)

The Group and Company enter into dervative contracts at normal market prices with another EDF SA group

company The total value of outstanding contracts reflected at fair value in the Group’” and Company balance
sheet was £1,487m (2006 £453 7m)
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45. Related parties continued

Transactions with key management personnel

GROUP and COMPANY 2007 2006
£m £m
Short-term benefits 3.2 30
Compensation for loss of office - 02
Post-employment benefits 0.2 08
34 40

Key management personnel compnse members of the Board and the Executive Committee, a total of seven
individuals at 31 December 2007 (2006 eight) The Executive Committee 1s a cross-branch committee of
senor staff who take part in the decision-making for the Group

46. Parent undertaking and controlling party

EDF Energy Group Holdings plc holds a 100% interest in EDF Energy plc and 15 the immediate parent
company

At 31 December 2007, Electricité de France SA a company incorporated in France, 1s the Company's
ultimate parent company and controlling party This 1s the largest and smallest group for which consolidated
accounts are prepared Copies of that company's consolidated accounts may be obtained from Electricite de
France, 22-30 Avenue de Wagram, 75382, Paris, Cedex 08, France

81




